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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

INTRODUCTION
The Philippine International Trading Corporation (PITC), a line corporate agency
attached to the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI), is a chartered governmentowned and controlled corporation (GOCC) created in 1973. After several amendments to
its corporate charter, PITC became a 99.50 per cent subsidiary of the National
Development Company (NDC) with the remaining 0.50 per cent share owned by the
Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP).
PITC has a broad mandate as the country’s only state trading corporation and has
embarked in international trading and trade-related activities including exports and
special trading arrangements, importation and bulk procurement of commodities and
industrial products, cargo consolidation, shipping, bonded warehousing, foreign and
domestic procurement and outsourcing services, strategic marketing and joint ventures.
Over the last few years, PITC has become the procurement agent of choice of many
government agencies and offices, providing government clients with procurement
outsourcing services for specialized goods and services. For such services, PITC
charges its clients service fees ranging from one to four per cent of the amount of
procurement contract. PITC also administers the Countertrade Program of the
government under Executive Order (EO) No. 120 involving the importation of goods and
equipment valued at US$1 Million and over.
Pursuant to Presidential Decree (PD) No. 1071, PITC is administered by a Board of
Directors, composed of the following as of December 31, 2019:

Name
Ramon M. Lopez
Dave M. Almarinez
Ceferino S. Rodolfo
Roy A. Cimatu
Ernesto D. Pernia
William D. Dar
Alberto G. Romulo
Ma. Lourdes F. Rebueno
Luis E. Gimenez
Robert Sy Tan

Mother Agency and Designation
DTI – Secretary
PITC – President
Board of Investments (BOI) – Undersecretary
Department of Environment & Natural Resources
(DENR) – Secretary
National Economic and Development Authority
(NEDA) – Secretary
Department of Agriculture (DA) – Secretary
DBP – Chairman
NDC – General Manager
Private Sector
Private Sector

Membership in
the Board
Chairman
Vice-Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

As of December 31, 2019, PITC had total personnel complement of 104, of which 55 per
cent belonged to operations, while 45 per cent belonged to the support groups.
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The list of its principal officers is shown below:
Name
Dave M. Almarinez
Myra Chitella T. Alvarez
Christabelle P. Ebriega
Maria Gudelia C. Guese

-

Position / Designation
President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
OIC Vice-President, Military Procurement Group
Vice-President, Government Procurement Group
OIC – Vice President, Corporate Governance Group

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
I.

Financial Position (In Philippine Peso)

Assets
Liabilities
Equity

II.

2019
34,722,195,846
33,506,168,761
1,216,027,085

2018
31,676,163,103
30,807,964,937
868,198,166

Increase/
(Decrease)
3,046,032,743
2,698,203,824
347,828,919

2019
784,178,115
55,902,459
65,822,516
12,874
8,488,046
8,912,377
139,138,272
645,039,843
15,656,823
629,383,020

2018
701,092,745
54,517,642
71,574,293
19,028
4,033,678
4,851,909
134,996,550
566,096,195
5,180,839
560,915,356

Increase/
(Decrease)
83,085,370
1,384,817
(5,751,777)
(6,154)
4,454,368
4,060,468
4,141,722
78,943,648
10,475,984
68,467,664

Comprehensive Income

Income
Personnel services
Maintenance and other operating expenses
Financial expenses
Direct costs
Non-cash expenses
Total expenses
Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Comprehensive income

III.

2019 Approved Corporate Operating Budget (C0B) vs. Actual Expenditures

Personnel services
Maintenance and other operating expenses
Capital outlays

Per COB*
74,517,000
100,242,000
52,237,000
226,996,000

Actual
55,902,459
65,822,516
1,083,729
122,808,704

Variance
18,614,541
34,419,484
51,153,271
104,187,296

* Approved CY 2019 COB is not yet received as of date.
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SCOPE OF AUDIT
The audit covered the examination, on a test basis, of the accounts, transactions and
operations of the PITC to enable us to express an opinion on the financial statements for
the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 in accordance with International
Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions (ISSAIs). It was also conducted at determining
the PITC’s compliance with pertinent laws, rules and regulations and adherence to
prescribed policies and procedures.
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We rendered an unmodified opinion on the fairness of presentation of the financial
statements of the PITC.

SIGNIFICANT AUDIT OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
The significant audit observations and recommendations that need immediate action are
as follows:
1.

The balances of fund transfers totaling P9.176 billion from various Source
Agencies (SAs), specifically national government agencies (NGAs), for the
periods calendar years (CYs) 2009 to 2019 remained unutilized as of December
31, 2019 due to pending procurements. These unutilized fund transfers were not
yet returned to the concerned client-government agencies and/or the National
Government, contrary to the provision under Section 10 of the General
Appropriations Act (GAA) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2019, on the Reversion, Closure
and Transfer of Special Accounts, Fiduciary or Trust Funds, Revolving Funds
and Unauthorized Accounts and the pertinent provision of the prior years’ GAAs.

1.1

We reiterated our previous year’s recommendations that Management:

2.

a.

Direct the concerned official of PITC to immediately revert to the
SAs/General Fund/Bureau of the Treasury (BTr) the unutilized fund
transfers, particularly those idle funds in the PITC’s custody for more than
one year pursuant to Section 10 of the GAA of FY 2019; and

b.

Coordinate with the concerned SAs, for the CY 2019 fund transfers with
pending procurements due to non-submission of TOR and other necessary
documents, to comply with all the requirements within a specific period;
otherwise, return the funds to them or to the BTr.

The unused balances of fund transfers from various completed procurement
projects aggregating P489.046 million were not returned to the concerned SAs
as of December 31, 2019, instead P404.440 million or 83 per cent would be used
to finance other projects, contrary to the pertinent provisions of COA Circular No.
94-013 dated December 13, 1994 and General Provisions of the prior years’
GAA.
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2.1

We reiterated our previous year’s recommendations that Management:
a.

Return the unused balances of fund transfers for completed projects to the
concerned SAs or to the BTr in accordance with COA Circular No. 94-013
dated December 13, 1994 and furnish the Audit Team copies of documents
pertaining thereto, for validation purposes; and

b.

Stop the practice of utilizing the unused balances from completed projects
for other purpose, unless authorized in accordance with the provisions of
the GAA.

3.

Interest earnings aggregating P581.135 million as of December 31, 2019 on fund
transfers from various SAs invested in Money Market Placement were recorded
as income of PITC, instead of remitting the same to the National Treasury which
is not in accordance with Section 65 of Presidential Decree (PD) No. 1445 and
Department of Finance (DOF) Circular No. 01-2017 dated May 11, 2017. It
should be noted however that on April 6, 2020 in compliance with Republic Act
(RA) No. 7656, otherwise known as the “Dividend Law”, PITC remitted 50 per
cent of the subject interest income or P290.568 million to the Bureau of the
Treasury (BTr).

3.1

We reiterated our previous year’s recommendation that Management settle/remit
to the National Treasury/ BTr all interest earnings of the fund transfers in
compliance with Section 65 of PD No. 1445 and DOF Circular No. 01-2017 and
inform the client-government agencies of the remittance thereof.

SUMMARY OF TOTAL SUSPENSIONS, DISALLOWANCES AND CHARGES
As of December 31, 2019, there were no unsettled audit suspensions, charges and
disallowance.
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR YEAR’S AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS
Of the eleven (11) audit recommendations embodied in the previous year’s Annual Audit
Report (AAR), five (5) were fully implemented and six (6) were partially implemented.
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PART I - AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Republic of the Philippines

COMMISSION ON AUDIT
Commonwealth Avenue, Quezon City, Philippines
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Philippine International Trading Corporation
5th Floor, NDC Building
116 Tordesillas Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of the Philippine International Trading
Corporation (PITC) which comprise the statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the statements of comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity, statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and
notes to financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of PITC as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAIs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the PITC in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
PITC’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the PITC or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the PITC’s financial
reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISSAIs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISSAIs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:


Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control;



Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the PITC’s internal control;



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;



Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the PITC’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the PITC to cease to continue as a going concern; and



Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information for the year ended
December 31, 2019, required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue as disclosed in Note 30
to the financial statements is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRSs.
Such supplementary information is the responsibility of management.

COMMISSION ON AUDIT

ATTY. REYNALDO C. DARANG
Supervising Auditor
Audit Group E – Trading and Promotions Group
Cluster 6 – Social, Cultural, Trading, Promotional and Other Services
Corporate Government Sector

August 18, 2020
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TRADE & lNDJSTRY
p機iしI P pi N各S

STATEIVIENT OF MANAGEMENT,S RESPONSIB!LITY
FOR FINANC看AしSTATEMENTS

The management of the Ph匝Pine Intemationai T「ading Co「POration is 「esponsibIe fo「
the prepa「ation ofthe financial statements as at December 31 , 201 9 and 2018, incIuding
the additionai components attached the「eto in accordance with the p「escribed financiai

「eporting f「amewo「k indicated therein. The respons酬ity includes designing and
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DAVE M. ALMARINEZ
President & CEO
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Date Signed
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PHILIPPINE INTERNATIONAL TRADING CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at December 31, 2019 and 2018
(In Philippine Peso)
NOTES
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets
Receivables - net
Other current assets
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Other investments
Receivables
Investment property
Property, plant and equipment - net
Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets
Total Non-Current Assets

2019

2018

5
6
7
8

34,323,631,989
9,713,629
231,827,295
34,565,172,913

30,611,799,596
607,813,738
157,084,597
142,158,823
31,518,856,754

9
10
11
12
13
14

689,300
7,216,804
64,791,299
8,944,037
40,578,009
34,803,484
157,022,933

689,300
7,216,804
64,791,299
9,343,968
40,673,493
34,591,485
157,306,349

34,722,195,846

31,676,163,103

15
16
17
18

1,340,896
35,688,922
33,441,779,176
12,551,142
33,491,360,136

1,449,242
35,129,119
30,737,415,096
18,790,234
30,792,783,691

19
13

14,280,509
528,116
14,808,625

14,598,789
582,457
15,181,246

33,506,168,761

30,807,964,937

916,027,085
300,000,000
1,216,027,085

568,198,166
300,000,000
868,198,166

34,722,195,846

31,676,163,103

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Inter-agency payables
Trust liabilities
Other payables
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Retained earnings/(deficit)
Stockholders' equity
TOTAL EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

20

The notes on pages 9 to 52 form part of these statements
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PHILIPPINE INTERNATIONAL TRADING CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(In Philippine Peso)
NOTES
Income
Service and business income
Gains
Other non-operating income
Total Income

Personnel services
Maintenance and other operating expenses
Financial expenses
Direct costs
Non-cash expenses
Total Expenses
Profit/(loss) before tax
Income tax expense
Profit/(loss) after tax
Net assistance/subsidy/(financial assistance/subsidy/contribution)
Net income/(loss)
Other comprehensive income/loss) for the period
Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

2019

2018

21
22
23

780,138,082
3,968,894
71,139
784,178,115

692,755,282
8,175,435
162,028
701,092,745

24
25
26
27
28

55,902,459
65,822,516
12,874
8,488,046
8,912,377
139,138,272

54,517,642
71,574,293
19,028
4,033,678
4,851,909
134,996,550

645,039,843
15,656,823
629,383,020
629,383,020
629,383,020

566,096,195
5,180,839
560,915,356
560,915,356
560,915,356

The notes on pages 9 to 52 form part of these statements
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PHILIPPINE INTERNATIONAL TRADING CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(In Philippine Peso)

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2018

Stockholders'
Retained Earnings/
Equity
(Deficit)
(Note 20)
71,800,180
300,000,000

TOTAL
371,800,180

CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR 2018
Add/(Deduct):
Comprehensive income for the year
Dividends

560,915,356
(64,517,370)

-

560,915,356
(64,517,370)

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

568,198,166

300,000,000

868,198,166

629,383,020
(281,649,274)
95,173

-

629,383,020
(281,649,274)
95,173

916,027,085

300,000,000

1,216,027,085

CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR 2019
Add/(Deduct):
Comprehensive income for the year
Dividends
Other adjustments
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

The notes on pages 9 to 52 form part of these statements
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PHILIPPINE INTERNATIONAL TRADING CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(In Philippine Peso)
NOTES

2019

2018

10,701,920
27,324,248
8,138,843
9,658,581,792
46,319,246
1,343,611
9,752,409,660
274,857,574
10,027,267,234

2,428,728
28,936,747
7,099,688
14,894,514,930
29,959,014
6,600,822
14,969,539,929
33,718,409
15,003,258,338

(132,574,621)
(469,902)
(4,283,341,820)
(197,939,272)
(28,860)
(2,542,787,581)
(7,157,142,056)
(25,595,263)
(7,182,737,319)

(103,288,606)
(2,474,163)
(802,937)
(3,410,243,824)
(128,684,027)
(306,892,492)
(3,952,386,049)
(3,745,493)
(3,956,131,542)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

2,844,529,915

11,047,126,796

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows
Receipt of interest earned
Proceeds from matured investments
Total Cash Inflows
Proceeds from termination of money market placement
Adjusted Cash Inflows

770,599,598
1,570,000,000
2,340,599,598
2,340,599,598

431,461,654
431,461,654
431,461,654

Cash Outflows
Acquisition of government securities
Purchase/construction of property, plant and equipment
Total Cash Outflows
Adjustments
Adjusted Cash Outflows

(1,048,977,073)
(139,177,948)
(1,188,155,021)
(1,188,155,021)

(602,509,836)
(77,320,939)
(679,830,775)
(679,830,775)

1,152,444,577

(248,369,121)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows
Proceeds from sale of goods and services
Collection of income/revenue
Collection of receivables
Receipt of inter-agency fund transfers
Receipt of guaranty/security deposits
Other receipts
Total Cash Inflows
Adjustments
Adjusted Cash Inflows

29

Cash Outflows
Payment of expenses
Purchase of inventories
Grant of cash advances
Payments of accounts payable
Remittance of personnel benefit contributions and mandatory deductions
Release of inter-agency fund transfers
Other disbursements
Total Cash Outflows
Adjustments
Adjusted Cash Outflows

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Outflows
Payment of dividends
Total Cash Outflows
Adjustments
Adjusted Cash Outflows

(281,649,274)
(281,649,274)
(281,649,274)

(64,517,370)
(64,517,370)
(64,517,370)

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

(281,649,274)

(64,517,370)

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

3,715,325,218

10,734,240,305

(3,492,825)

4,542,357

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JANUARY 1

30,611,799,596

19,873,016,934

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31

34,323,631,989

30,611,799,596

Effects of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents

The notes on pages 9 to 52 form part of these statements
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PHILIPPINE INTERNATIONAL TRADING CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in Philippine Peso unless otherwise stated)
1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Philippine International Trading Corporation (PITC), a line corporate agency
attached to the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI), is a chartered governmentowned and controlled corporation (GOCC) created on July 21, 1973 by virtue of
Presidential Decree (PD) No. 252, as amended by PD No. 1071 on January 25, 1977.
Following several amendments to its corporate charter in the 1980’s, PITC became a
99.50 per cent subsidiary of the National Development Company (NDC) with the
remaining 0.50 per cent share owned by the Development Bank of the
Philippines (DBP).
With a broad mandate as the country’s only State trading corporation, PITC has over 45
years of professional experience in international trading and trade-related activities.
PITC has, over the years, embarked on multifarious businesses including exports and
special trading arrangements, importation and bulk procurement of commodities and
industrial products, cargo consolidation, shipping, bonded warehousing, foreign and
domestic procurement and outsourcing services, strategic marketing and joint ventures.
By virtue of Executive Order (EO) No. 442 dated July 4, 2005, PITC was designated as
the lead coordinating agency to implement the government’s vital program to make
quality and essential medicines available, affordable and accessible to the public, to
include procurement, sourcing and marketing and distribution of essential medicines for
Filipino consumers. The operational requirements and administration of this program
has, however, been transferred in 2006 to PITC Pharma, Inc. (PPI), now Philippine
Pharma Procurement, Inc. (PPPI), a Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) registered subsidiary formed by PITC and NDC.
Today, PITC continues its mandated role to pursue exports of a wide range of consumer
products and commodities offering consolidation, production monitoring, quality
assurance and related services for foreign buyers. Through its Customs bonded
warehouses, PITC provides assistance to accredited local export producers for the
importation of their raw material requirements.
PITC still plays a key role in the government’s price-supply stabilization programs
through strategic bulk importation of essential commodities and raw materials. It also
administers the countertrade program of the government under EO No. 120 involving the
importation or purchase of foreign capital equipment and goods valued at US$1 million
and over in close collaboration with government agencies and offices.
Over the last few years, PITC has become the procurement agent of choice of many
government agencies and offices, providing government clients with timely, costefficient and transparent procurement outsourcing services for specialized goods and
customized services including, but not limited to security and military supplies and
equipment, information technology, communication and power-generating systems,
medical and dental supplies, office/industrial design and fittings/furniture as well as
transport and other support services.
9

PITC has embarked on strategic alliances with the private sector, both foreign and
domestic, through marketing and dealership arrangements both for specialized goods
and services to ensure a viable, competitive and reliable supply base for its programs
and projects.
The Governing Board of PITC is composed of the following:
Chairman
Vice-Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member

-

Member
Member

-

Member

-

Secretary of the DTI
The President of the PITC
The General Manager of the NDC
The Chairman of the Board of Investments (BOI)
The Secretary of the Department of Agriculture (DA)
The Secretary of the Department of Environment and Natural
Resources (DENR)
The Chairman of the DBP
The Secretary General of the National Economic and Development
Authority (NEDA)
Two Appointive Directors

As of December 31, 2019, PITC had a total personnel complement of 104, of which 55
per cent belonged to operations while 45 per cent belonged to the support groups.
PITC’s registered office which is also its principal place of business is located at the
NDC Building, 116 Tordesillas St., Salcedo Village, Makati City. The Corporation’s
official website is www.pitc.gov.ph.
The financial statements of PITC were presented and approved for issuance by the
Board of Directors on August 18, 2020.

2.

BASIS FOR THE PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
2.1

Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(PFRSs)

The financial statements of PITC have been prepared in accordance with PFRSs.
PFRSs are adopted by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the
pronouncements issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and
approved by the Philippine Board of Accountancy. The term PFRS includes PFRS,
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Standing Interpretations Committee
(SIC)/International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations.
The financial statements of PITC have been prepared using historical cost basis unless
otherwise indicated.
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2.2

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, the currency of the primary
economic environment in which PITC operates. All values represent absolute amounts
except when otherwise indicated.
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Adoption of new and amended PFRSs
a.

New Standards effective for reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019 relevant to PITC

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous
financial year, except for the adoption of the following new and amended PFRSs
which PITC adopted effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2019.


Amendments to PFRS 9, Financial Instruments – Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation – The amendments allow entities to measure
particular prepayable financial assets with negative compensation at
amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income
(instead of at fair value through profit or loss) if a specified condition is met.
It also clarifies the requirements in PFRS 9, Financial Instruments for
adjusting the amortized cost of a financial liability when a modification or
exchange does not result in its derecognition (as opposed to adjusting the
effective interest rate).



PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The new standard replaces PAS 11, Construction Contracts, PAS 18,
Revenue and their related interpretations. It establishes a single
comprehensive framework for revenue recognition to apply consistently
across transactions, industries and capital markets, with a core principle
(based on five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers),
enhanced disclosures, and new or improved guidance (e.g., the point at
which revenue is recognized, accounting for variable consideration, cost of
fulfilling and obtaining a contract, etc.).



Amendment to PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers –
Clarification to PFRS 15
The amendments provide clarifications on the following topics:
(a) identifying performance obligations; (b) principal versus agent
considerations; and (c) licensing. The amendments also provide some
transition relief for modified contracts and completed contracts. The
Commission on Audit (COA) issued Resolution No. 2019-006 dated March
27, 2019 prescribing the mandatory application of PFRS 15 effective
January 1, 2019.
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PITC provides outsourcing services to various Source Agencies (SAs) for
the procurement of the latter’s good requirements and such other related
services that may be required, in accordance with Republic Act (RA) No.
9184 and its Revised Implementing Rules and Regulations (IRR). It
recognizes revenue on performance obligations satisfied at a point in time.
As provided in the Memoranda of Agreement (MOAs) with the various SAs,
PITC shall recognize Service Fee for the procurement of goods and
services with the following schedule:
i.

Initial payment of fifty per cent (50%) of the applicable Service Fee
plus Value-Added Tax (VAT) thereon, upon receipt by the winning
bidder/supplier of the Notice of Award (NOA);

ii.

The balance of fifty per cent (50%) of the applicable Service Fee plus
VAT shall be due upon delivery and acceptance of the goods and
services by the respective SAs and upon issuance of Certificate of
Acceptance.

Moreover, under the MOA, interest earned, which shall not be more than
the prevailing interest rate on interest bearing current or savings account
with the authorized government depository bank, on the fund transferred to
PITC shall be for the account of the SA. In addition, all performance
security forfeited by PITC as warranted under the provisions of RA No.
9184 and its Revised IRR, shall be for the benefit of, and belong to, the SA.
Likewise, all damages and other penalties imposed in the implementation
of procurement contracts shall accrue in favor of the SA.


Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 23, Uncertainty Over Income Tax
Treatments – The interpretation provides guidance on how to reflect the
effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes under PAS 12, Income
Taxes, in particular (i) whether uncertain tax treatments should be
considered separately, (ii) assumptions for taxation authorities’
examinations, (iii) determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, and (v) effect of
changes in facts and circumstances.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle:


Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes – Income Tax Consequences of
Payments on Financial Instruments Classified as Equity – Clarifies that
income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past
transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to
distribution to owners and thus, should be recognized in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally
recognized those past transactions or events.



Amendments to PAS 23, Borrowing Costs – Borrowing Costs Eligible for
Capitalization – Clarifies that in calculating the capitalization rate on
general borrowings, if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the
related qualifying asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing
becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally.
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b.

New Standards effective in 2019 that are not relevant or not applicable
to PITC

The following list of PFRS/PAS/IFRIC were not applicable and considered in the
preparation of the Financial Statements based on the nature of business and
current operation of PITC which is mainly focused in international trading and
trade-related activities.


Amendments to PAS 19, Employee Benefits – Plan Amendment
Curtailment or Settlement – The amendments specify how companies
remeasure a defined benefit plan when a change – an amendment,
curtailment or settlement – to a plan takes place during a reporting period.
It requires entities to use the updated assumptions from this
remeasurement to determine current service cost and net interest cost for
the remainder of the reporting period after the change to the plan.



Amendments to PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures –
Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value – The amendments
are part of the Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle and clarify
that the election to measure at fair value through profit or loss an
investment in an associate or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is
a venture capital organization, mutual fund, unit trust or other qualifying
entity, is available for each investment in an associate or joint venture on an
investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recognition.



Amendments to PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures –
Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures – The amendments
clarify that long-term interests in an associate or joint venture that, in
substance, form part of the entity’s net investment but to which the equity
method is not applied, are accounted for using PFRS 9, Financial
Instruments.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle:


Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations and PFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements – Previously Held Interest in a Joint Operation – The
amendment to PFRS 3, Business Combinations clarifies that when an entity
obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, the acquirer applies
the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages, including
remeasuring previously held interests in the joint operation at its
acquisition-date fair value.
The amendment to PFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements clarifies

c.

New and Amended PFRSs issued but not yet effective as of December
31, 2019

New and amended PFRSs which are not yet effective for the year ended
December 31, 2019 and have not been applied in preparing the financial
statements are summarized below.
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020:


Amendments to PFRS 3 – Definition of a Business. Clarifies that that to be
considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must
include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. It narrowed the
definitions of a business and of outputs by focusing on goods and services
provided to customers and by removing the reference to an ability to reduce
cost. It removes the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of replacing any missing inputs or processes and continuing to
produce outputs and add an optional concentration test that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is
not a business.



Amendments to PAS 1 and PAS 8 – Definition of Material. Clarify the
definition of ‘material’ and align the definition used in the Conceptual
Framework and the standards. It provides that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting entity.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021 and thereafter:


PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts – This standard will replace PFRS 4,
Insurance Contracts. It requires insurance liabilities to be measured at
current fulfillment value and provides a more uniform measurement and
presentation approach to achieve consistent, principle-based accounting for
all insurance contracts. It also requires similar principles to be applied to
reinsurance contracts held and investment contracts with discretionary
participation features issued.



Amendment to IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or NonCurrent. The amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the
requirements by helping companies determine whether, in the Statement of
Financial Position, debt and other liabilities with an uncertain settlement
date should be classified as current (due or potentially due to be settled
within one year) or non-current.

Deferred effectivity


Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28,
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures – Sale or Contribution of
Assets Between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture – The
amendments address a current conflict between the two standards and
clarify that a gain or loss should be recognized fully when the transaction
involves a business, and partially if it involves assets that do not constitute
a business. The effective date of the amendments, initially set for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, was deferred indefinitely in
December 2015 but earlier application is still permitted.
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PFRS 16, Leases – This standard will replace PAS 17, Leases and its
related interpretations. The most significant change introduced by the new
standard is that almost all leases will be brought on to lessees’ Statement
of Financial Position under a single model (except leases of less than 12
months and leases of low-value assets), eliminating the distinction between
operating and finance leases. Lessor accounting, however, remains largely
unchanged and the distinction between operating and finance lease is
retained.

Management is currently assessing the impact of these new standards in its
financial statements.
3.2

Financial Instruments

Financial assets or financial liabilities are recognized in the Corporation’s Statement of
Financial Position when, and only when, the entity becomes party to the contractual
provision of the instruments. For purposes of presenting financial instruments as
liabilities or equity and for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities, PAS 32,
Financial Instruments: Presentation is applied to the classification of financial
instruments, from the perspective of the issuer, into financial assets, financial liabilities
and equity instruments; the classification of related interest, dividends, losses and gains;
and the circumstances in which financial assets and liabilities should be offset.
PITC’s Financial Instruments are already in accordance with PFRS 7, specifically short
term and long term investments that were reclassified to Investment in Bonds and Held
to Maturity.
3.3

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition
Financial assets are recognized in PITC’s financial statements when the Corporation
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are
recognized initially at fair value. Transactions costs are included in the initial
measurement of the Corporation’s financial assets, except for investments classified at
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, PITC takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participant would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which is described as follows:
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Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;



Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and



Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets as
at FVTPL, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), and at amortized
cost. The classification is generally based on the business model which a financial asset
is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by the regulation or convention in the
marketplace. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to initial recognition
unless PITC changes its business model for managing financial assets in which case all
affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the reporting period following
the change in the business model.
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:


It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and



Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, the financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less any allowance for impairment. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, and
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the financial assets are reclassified to FVTPL, impaired
or derecognized, as well as through the amortization process.
PITC’s cash and cash equivalents, investment in treasury bills and trade and other
receivables are included under this category.
Financial Assets at FVOCI – debt investments
A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:


it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
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its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For the purposes of the cash flow characteristics of financial assets, "Principal" is defined as
the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. "Interest" is defined as consideration
for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g.
liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.
The Corporation considers the contractual terms of the instrument in assessing whether the
contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described
above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets.
In addition, on initial recognition, the Corporation may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI or at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.
Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Below is the Corporation’s accounting policy on the classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets applicable before January 1, 2018:
Financial assets include cash, investment in Philippine Pharma Procurement, Inc. (PPPI)
and loans and receivables.
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand, demand deposits and shortterm highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determined payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when
the corporation provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention
of trading the receivables. They are included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the Statement of Financial Position date which are
classified as non-current assets.
Loans and receivables are presented as Trade and Other Receivables in the Statement
of Financial Position. Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at cost less
impairment losses. Any changes in their value are recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment of Financial Assets
Below is the Corporation’s accounting policy on the impairment of financial assets applicable
starting January 1, 2018:
The Corporation applies an Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model to its financial assets
measured at amortized cost and debt investments at FVOCI, but not to investment in equity
instruments.
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Loss allowances are measured on either of the following bases:


12-month ECLs. These are ECLs that result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date; and



Lifetime ECLs. These are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

The Corporation measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for
the following, which are measured as 12-month ECLs:


Debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and



Other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

The Corporation has elected to measure loss allowances for receivables at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Corporation considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Corporation’s historical experience, informed credit assessment including current conditions
and forecast of future economic conditions.
The Corporation assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than two years past due.
The Corporation considers a financial asset to be in default when:


The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Corporation in full, without
recourse by the Corporation to actions such as realizing security
(if any is held); or



The financial asset is more than two years past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Corporation is exposed to credit risk.
Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Corporation expects to
receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.
At each reporting date, the Corporation assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortized cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘creditimpaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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Below is the Corporation’s accounting policy on the impairment of financial assets applicable
before January 1, 2018:

Impairment loss is provided when there is objective evidence that PITC will not be able
to collect all amounts due to it in accordance with the original terms of the receivables or
when investment can no longer be recovered.
Derecognition of Financial Assets
The Corporation derecognizes financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Corporation neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Corporation recognizes its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amount it may have to pay. If the Corporation retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Corporation continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.
On derecognition of financial asset other than in its entirety, the Corporation allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial assets between the part it continues to
recognize under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognizes on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognized and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognized and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is
recognized in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognized
and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.
3.4

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

Classification as Debt or Equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Corporation classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition
Financial liabilities are recognized in the Corporation’s financial statements when the
Corporation becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs are included in the initial
measurement of the Corporation’s financial liabilities except for debt instruments
classified at FVTPL. In a regular way purchase or sale, financial liabilities are recognized
and derecognized, as applicable, using settlement date accounting.
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Financial liabilities include accounts payables and other payables, inter-agency payables
and trust liabilities.
Classification and Subsequent Measurement
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial
liabilities.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading; designated
upon initial recognition; either held for trading or designated upon initial recognition.
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:


It has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near
term; or



On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
the Corporation manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or



It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:


Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or



The financial liability forms part of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Corporation’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the Corporation is provided internally on that
basis; or



It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives that
sufficiently modify the cash flows of the liability and are not closely related, and
PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as a FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or
loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the other
gains and losses line item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in notes.
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, inter-agency payables and loans payables are
classified as other financial liabilities.
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Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
The Corporation derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only, the Corporation’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and
payable is recognized in profit or loss.
Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Corporation are
recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Capital stock is determined using the nominal value of shares that have been issued.
Retained Earnings
Retained Earnings represent accumulated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Corporation after deducting dividends declared. Retained earnings may also include
effect of changes in accounting policy and prior period adjustments.
3.5

Separate Financial Statements and Investments in Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Corporation exercises control over the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee.
An investment in subsidiary is accounted for using the cost method from the date on
which the investee becomes a subsidiary. Under the cost method, investment in
subsidiary is initially measured at cost and is presented in the Statement of Financial
Position at cost less any accumulated impairment in value.
Investment in subsidiary is derecognized upon disposal. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the investment in subsidiary and the net proceeds from disposal is
recognized immediately in profit or loss.
The financial statements include the accounts of the Head Office and four Philippine
International Houses (PIHs) located in New York, San Francisco, Munich and Sydney
which have ceased operation in 1987. However, the books of accounts of the closed
PIHs remain open to date. Request to write off the PIHs’ accounts was submitted to
COA in 1993 and was forwarded to the Congress of the Philippines per 5th Indorsement
of COA in 1997. Congress referred the same to the Office of the Ombudsman for
required certification that accounts are not subject of any pending case in said Office.
As of this date, request is still with the Office of the Ombudsman.
Moreover, PITC’s investment in its subsidiary, PPPI, was accounted for in these financial
statements at cost.
These financial statements are prepared as PITC’s separate financial statements. PITC
has not presented consolidated financial statements under paragraph 10 of PAS 27
considering that PITC’s debt or equity securities are not traded in a public market and
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that PITC did not file or is not in the process of filing its financial statements with a
securities commission or other regulatory body for the purpose of issuing any class of
instruments in a public market.
3.6

Inventories

At the Statement of Financial Position date, inventories are valued at lower of cost or net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the specific identification method for general
merchandise. The cost includes all costs directly attributable to acquisition, such as the
purchase price, import duties and other taxes that are not subsequently recoverable
from taxing authorities.
3.7

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property and equipment are initially measured at cost. The cost of an item of property
and equipment comprises:


Its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes,
after deducting trade discounts and rebates;



Any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management; and



The initial estimate of the future costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs
either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having used the item
during a particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during
that period.

All property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation,
amortization and any impairment in value.
Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally recognized in profit or
loss in the year the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond its
originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as
additional costs of property and equipment. The cost of replacing a component of an
item of property and equipment is recognized if it is probable that the future economic
benefits embodied within the component will flow to the Corporation, and its cost can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognized.
When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, these are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property and equipment.
Depreciation and amortization are calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the property and equipment.
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Depreciation commences when the assets are available for use and is computed on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Type of Asset
Office furniture and fixtures
Communication equipment
Transportation equipment
Office and IT equipment

Estimated Useful Life
5 to 10 years
5 to 10 years
7 years
5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the term of the lease.
3.8

Investment Property

Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment is stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at
the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
property are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which
they arise.
Investment property is derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income in the period of derecognition.
Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use.
For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for
subsequent accounting is the fair value on the date of change. If owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Corporation accounts property in
accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of
change.
3.9

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each reporting date, non-financial assets are reviewed to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is an
indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or
group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If
estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated
recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
If an impairment loss is subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in
profit or loss.

23

Derecognition of Non-financial assets
Non-financial assets are derecognized when the assets are disposed of or when no
future economic benefits are expected from these assets. Any difference between the
carrying value of the asset derecognized and the net proceeds from derecognition is
recognized in profit or loss.
3.10

Related Parties

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly, or
indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercises significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Such
relationships also exist between and/or among the reporting enterprises and its key
management personnel, directors, or its shareholders. In considering each possible
related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and
not merely the legal form.
3.11

Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to PITC and the revenue can be reliably measured. PITC adopts the Accrual
method of accounting.
(a)

In selling of goods – Revenue is recognized upon the transfer of significant risk
and rewards of ownership of the goods to the buyer and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably. Revenue is not recognized to the extent where there
are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due,
associated costs, or the possible return of goods.

(b)

When rendering services – Revenue earned from services rendered as an
alternate procurement partner of government entities is recognized by reference
to the stage of completion of services. The stage of completion is determined by
the issuance of Notice of Award to the winning supplier/contractor and the
progress of delivery of goods and services and upon issuance of the Certificate
of Acceptance by the procuring entities.

(c)

Interest – Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues except for interest
income on loans of delinquent borrowers specifically those with restructured
accounts. Recognizing interest income therefrom would only result in unrealized
revenue, hence, overstatement of revenues. Interest income is recognized upon
collection or receipt of funds, unless duly adjudicated by a proper court.

(d)

Rental income – is recognized from operating leases on investment property and
is accounted on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

(e)

Revenue from contracts with customers - recognition of revenue depicts the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled to. An entity must
apply the five-step model to comply with the new revenue recognition standard:
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Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customers
Step 2: Define the performance obligations in each contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the
contract
Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance
obligation
Revenue is measured by reference to the fair value of consideration received or
receivable by PITC for goods supplied and services provided, excluding value added tax
(VAT) and trade discounts.
Expenses are recognized in profit or loss when decrease in future economic benefit
related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in liability has arisen that can be
measured reliably. Expenses are recognized in profit or loss: on the basis of a direct
association between the costs incurred and the learning of specific items of income; on
the basis of systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are
expected to arise over several accounting periods and the association with income can
only be broadly or indirectly determined; or immediately when an expenditure produces
no future economic benefits or when, and to the extent that, future economic benefits do
not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position as
an asset.
Cost and expenses are recorded on an accrual basis and are recognized in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income upon utilization of the service or at the date they
are incurred. Expenditure is recognized and charged against the related revenue when
recognized. Finance costs are reported on accrual basis.
3.12

Leases

PITC accounts for its leases as follows:
(a)

PITC as Lessee
Leases, which do not transfer to PITC substantially all risks and benefits of
ownership of the leased assets are classified as operating leases. Operating
lease payments are recognized as expense in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as
maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

(b)

PITC as Lessor
Leases, which do not transfer to the Lessee substantially all risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating lease. Lease income from
operating leases is recognized as income in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Indirect costs incurred by
PITC in negotiating and arranging for an operating lease is recognized as
expense over the lease term.
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3.13

Employee Benefits

Under PAS 19 – Employee Benefits, an entity is required to recognize a liability when an
employee has provided service in exchange for employee benefits to be paid in the
future; and an expense when the entity consumes the economic benefit arising from
service provided by an employee in exchange for employee benefits.
The short-term employee benefits include items such as:
(a)

Wages, salaries and social security contributions; and

(b)

Short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick
leave) where the absences are expected to occur within 12 months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related employee service.

Accounting for short-term employee benefits is generally straightforward because no
actuarial assumptions are required to measure the obligation or the cost and there is no
possibility of any actuarial gain or loss. Moreover, short-term employee benefit
obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis.
Terminal leave pay
When an employee has rendered service to an entity during an accounting period, PITC
shall recognize the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for that service as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any
amount already paid.
Moreover, PITC shall recognize the expected cost of short-term employee benefits in the
form of compensated absences in the case of accumulating compensated absences,
when the employees render service that increases their entitlement to future
compensated absences. An entity may compensate employees for absence for various
reasons including vacation, sickness and short-term disability, maternity or paternity.
Entitlements to accumulating compensated absences are those that are carried forward
and can be used in future periods if the current period’s entitlement is not used in full.
PITC measures the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the
additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that
has accumulated as of the Statement of Financial Position date.
The liability recognized in the Statement of Financial Position refers to the money value
of the accumulated vacation and sick leave credits, 50 per cent to 90 per cent of which
can be monetized pursuant to Civil Service Commission (CSC) Memorandum Circular
No. 31, s. 1991 implementing Joint CSC – Department of Budget and Management
(DBM) Circular No. 1, s. 1991, as amended by Joint CSC-DBM Circular No. 2-97,
s. 1997 and EO No. 291.
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3.14

Income Taxes

Current income tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or
unpaid at the Statement of Financial Position date. They are calculated according to the
tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized
as a component of tax expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Deferred tax is provided, using the Statement of Financial Position liability method on
temporary differences at the Statement of Financial Position date between the tax base
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Under the Statement of Financial Position liability method, with certain exceptions,
deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax credits
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deferred income tax asset will be utilized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Statement of
Financial Position date.
Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Only changes in deferred tax
assets or liabilities that relate to a change in value of assets or liabilities that is charged
to equity are charged or credited directly to equity.
3.15

Judgment and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements is in accordance with PFRSs that require the
Corporation to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Future events may occur which will cause
the assumption used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of changes in
estimates will be reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably
determinable.
a.

Classification of Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

In classifying financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity such as Treasury Bills, PITC evaluates its business model and its
contractual cash flows characteristics. PITC has confirmed that its intention is to
hold financial assets to collect contractual cash flows to maturity. The contractual
cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. If PITC change its business model, the whole class of such financial
assets will be designated as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
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b.

Estimated Allowance for Impairment of Receivables

PITC maintains allowance for impairment losses at a level considered adequate
to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. This amount is evaluated based
on such factors that affect the collectability of the accounts. These factors
include, the age of the receivables, the length of the Corporation’s relationship
with the customer, the customer’s payment behavior and known market factors.
The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the
Corporation made different judgments or utilized different estimates.
c.

Contingencies

The preparation of the financial statements is in accordance with previous
accounting policies that requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities. Future
events may cause the assumptions and estimates to change. The effects of any
change in estimates are reflected in the financial statements as they become
reasonably determinable.
3.16

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of
the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a
legal or constructive commitment that has resulted from past events.
Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the Statement of Financial
Position date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present
obligation. In those cases, when the possible outflow of economic resources as a result
of present obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided
for cannot be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the financial statements.
Probable inflows of economic benefits that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an
asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the financial
statements.
3.17

Events after Reporting Date

Subsequent events that provide additional information about conditions existing at period
end (adjusting events) are recognized in the financial statements. Subsequent events
that provide additional information about conditions existing after period end (nonadjusting events) are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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4.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

4.1

Risk Management Framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the corporation’s risk management framework. The Board has established the
corporation’s credit, finance, operational risk and executive committees, which are
responsible for developing and monitoring Corporation’s risk management policies in
their specific areas.
All board committees have executive and non-executive members and report regularly to
the Board of Directors on their activities.
PITC’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced
by the Corporation, to set appropriate risk limits and control, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes to market conditions, products and services offered. PITC, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop disciplined and
constructive control environment, in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.
The Corporation audit committee is responsible for monitoring compliance with PITC’s
risk management policies and procedures and for reviewing the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risk faced by the Corporation and it is regularly
discussed in the Board meeting.
Generally, the maximum risk exposure of financial assets and financial liabilities is the
carrying amount of the financial assets and financial liabilities as shown in the Statement
of Financial Position, as summarized on the following tables:
Note
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets – treasury bills
Receivables - current, net
Receivables-non-current, net

5
6
7
10

Note
Financial Liabilities:
Financial liabilities-current
Inter-agency payables
Trust liabilities
Other payables

4.2

15
16
17
18

2019
34,323,631,989
9,713,629
7,216,804
34,340,562,422
2019
1,340,896
35,688,922
33,441,779,176
12,551,142
33,491,360,136

2018
30,611,799,596
607,813,738
157,084,597
7,216,804
31,383,914,735
2018
1,449,242
35,129,119
30,737,415,096
18,790,234
30,792,783,691

Credit Risk
a.

Credit Risk Exposure

Credit risk refers to the risk that the client will default on its contractual obligation
resulting in financial loss to the corporation. PITC has adopted a policy of
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dealing only with creditworthy clients and obtaining sufficient collateral, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.
Also, PITC manages its credit risk by depositing its cash with high credit quality
banking institutions.
The carrying amount of the financial assets recognized in the financial
statements represents the Corporation’s maximum exposure to credit risk.
The table below shows the gross maximum exposure to credit risk of the
Corporation as of the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, without
considering the effects of credit risk mitigation techniques.
Note
Financial Assets:
Financial assets – treasury bills
Receivables - current, gross
Receivable-non-current, gross

b.

6
7
10

2019

2018

93,715,189
7,216,804
100,931,993

607,813,738
241,086,158
7,216,804
856,116,700

Management of Credit Risk

The Board of Directors has delegated primary responsibility for the management
of credit risk and risk management to its Credit Committee which reports to the
Board meeting. Providing advice, guidance and specialized skills to business
units to promote best practice throughout the Corporation in the management of
credit risk.
Also, the Corporation has currently adopted that for significant proportion of sales
of goods and services, advance payment from clients are received to mitigate
the risk.
PITC maintains allowance for impairment losses at a level considered adequate
to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. This amount is evaluated based
on such factors that affect the collectability of the accounts. These factors
include, the age of the receivables, the length of the Corporation’s relationship
with the customer, the customer’s payment behavior and known market factors.
The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the
Corporation made different judgements or utilized different estimates.
PITC will request authority from COA for the write-off of receivable balance (and
any related allowances for impairment losses) when Treasury Department
determines that the receivables are finally uncollectible after exhausting its efforts
to collect and legal action.
4.3

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation might encounter difficulty in meeting
obligation from its financial liabilities.
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a.

Management of Liquidity Risk

The Corporation’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Corporation’s reputation.
The Corporation seeks to manage its liquidity profile to be able to finance capital
expenditures as well as its current operations. To cover its financing
requirements, the Corporation intends to use internally generated funds and
available short-term credit facilities.
As part of its liquidity risk management, the Corporation regularly evaluates its
projected and actual cash flows. It also continually assesses conditions in the
financial markets for opportunities to pursue fund raising activities, in case any
requirements arise. Fund raising activities may include bank loans and subsidies
from the national government or government owned and controlled corporations.
b.

Exposure to Liquidity Risk

The liquidity risk is the adverse situation when the Corporation encounters
difficulty in meeting unconditionally the settlement of its obligations at maturity.
Prudent liquidity management requires that liquidity risks are identified,
measured, monitored and controlled in a comprehensive and timely manner.
Liquidity management is a major component of the corporate-wide risk
management system. Liquidity planning takes into consideration various possible
changes in economic, market, political, regulatory and other external factors that
may affect the liquidity position of the Corporation.
4.4

Market Risks

Market risk is the risk that changes in the market prices, such as interest rate, equity
prices, foreign exchange rates and credit spreads (not relating to changes in the
obligor’s issuer’s credit standing) will affect the Corporation’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return on risk.
Management of Market Risk
The management of interest rate risk against interest gap limits is supplemented by
monitoring the sensitivity of the Corporation’s financial assets and liabilities to various
standard and non-standard interest rate scenarios.
4.5

Operational Risks

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes
associated with the Corporation’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure,
and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those
arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of
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corporate behavior. Operational risks arise from all of the Corporation’s operations and
are faced by all business entities.
The Corporation’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the
avoidance of financial losses and damage to the Corporation’s reputation with overall
cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.
The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of control to address
operational risk is assigned to senior management within each business unit. This
responsibility is supported by the development of overall standards for the management
of operational risk in the following areas:











Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent
authorization of transaction
Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions
Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements
Documentation of controls and procedures
Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risk faced, and the
adequacy of controls and procedures to address the risk identified
Requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial
action
Development of contingency plans
Training and professional development
Ethical and business standards
Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective

Compliance with corporate standards is supported by a program of periodic reviews
undertaken by the Executive Committee. The results of periodic reviews are discussed
with the Board of Directors.
5.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following:
Cash on hand
Cash in bank - local currency
Cash in bank - foreign currency
Cash equivalents

2019
477,540
33,629,520,178
8,815,515
684,818,756
34,323,631,989

2018
568,952
3,859,020,794
15,567,675
26,736,642,175
30,611,799,596

The cash on hand consists primarily of undeposited collections and cash held by the
Disbursing Officers. Cash in banks generally earn interest at rates based on daily bank
deposit rates.
Short-term placements are made for varying periods between 71 to 90 days. Time
deposits are short-term highly liquid dollar and peso investments with the Development
Bank of the Philippines (DBP) and Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP) with original
maturities of three months or less with an effective interest rate ranging from 1.10 per
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cent to 3.90 per cent as of December 31, 2019 and from 1.05 per cent to 5.20 per cent
as of December 31, 2018.
Foreign currency deposits are translated to Peso amounts using the exchange rate of
P50.744:US$1 as of December 31, 2019 and P52.724:US$1 as of December 31, 2018.
The cash and cash equivalents includes funds held in trust for different government
agencies for the procurement of various items, as shown hereunder and a portion
thereof was used to purchase Treasury Bills (please refer to Note 6):
Agency
Philippine Army
Department of Information and Communication Technology
Bureau of Fire Protection - NHQ
Technical Education and Skills Development Authority
Bureau of Customs
Department of Health
Philippine Navy
Research Institute of Tropical Medicine
Philippine National Police
University of the Philippines - PGH
University of the Philippines Systems
Commission on Higher Education
Sugar Regulatory Administration
University of the Philippines – Los Baños
Armed Forces of the Philippines
Philippine Coast Guard
Office of the Civil Defense
Environmental Management Bureau
Maritime Industry Authority
Philippine Military Academy
Early Childhood Care Development Council
Department of Social Welfare and Development
Philippine Air Force
Dr. Jose Fabella Memorial Hospital
Advance Science and Technology Institute
Food and Drug Administration
University of the Philippines - Mindanao
Atrium of Makati Condominium Corporation
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
National Bureau of Investigation
Philippine State College of Aeronautics
Vicente Sotto Memorial Medical Center
Bureau of Fire Protection - NCR
Naval Education and Training Commission
Department of Energy
Finance Service Unit – Marine Barracks
Office for Transportation Security
Philvidec Industrial Estate Authority
Bureau of Fire Protection – Region III
San Lorenzo Ruiz Women's Hospital
Department of Health – Region I
Professional Regulations Commission
Veterans Medical Memorial Center

2019
5,487,588,569
3,534,274,750
3,390,895,282
3,026,237,904
2,805,845,778
2,149,989,230
1,908,552,964
1,180,936,226
1,033,834,036
1,014,222,403
768,110,936
708,880,285
566,031,641
556,186,389
552,853,802
528,581,651
502,223,081
401,914,851
347,268,666
329,660,212
306,833,479
271,911,540
245,884,167
217,863,792
181,815,024
142,656,960
125,626,869
121,541,881
120,080,790
103,572,129
89,372,469
80,061,889
63,704,578
52,210,186
33,789,538
31,204,562
30,867,931
29,482,171
27,332,572
25,003,833
19,654,664
19,452,000
19,386,538

2018
4,702,011,295
3,537,631,609
3,393,081,783
2,093,568,790
2,572,506,168
2,128,548,206
1,185,507,753
1,208,684,055
1,277,744,735
424,098,274
800,653,366
561,492,411
567,330,876
1,364,644,200
336,514,797
406,394,168
356,206,066
347,695,803
270,118,666
22,019,603
230,001,917
173,543,183
323,375,198
357,623,514
174,510,627
121,598,535
103,758,332
89,327,598
80,064,212
68,126,629
65,605,195
24,820,856
37,249,658
30,948,472
30,024,541
27,310,425
19,638,738
23,234,616
15,012,270
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Agency
Land Management Bureau
Design Center of The Philippines
Bataan General Hospital
Department of Environment and Natural Resources – Region I
University of the Philippines - Iloilo
Manila Bay Coordinating Office
Las Piñas General Hospital and Satellite Trauma Center
Department of Trade and Industry – Region VIII
Philippine Veterans Affairs Office
Philippine Drug Enforcement Agency
Department of Health – Region VII
Ospital ng Palawan
Construction Industry Authority of the Philippines
Department of Trade and Industry – National Capital Regional Off.
Department of Trade and Industry – Region VII
Philippine Trade and Training Center
National Computer Center
Department of Trade and Industry – Region XI
University of the Philippines – National Institute for Health
Philippine Center for Economic Development
Department of Trade and Industry – Central Office
Department of Foreign Affairs
Department of Transportation
Department of National Defense
Bureau of Corrections
Department of Trade and Industry – Region III
Department of Trade and Industry – Region IV A
Philippine Ports Authority
Department of Trade and Industry – Region IX
Power Sector Assets and Liabilities Management Corporation
Presidential Security Group
Information and Communications Technology Office
Philippine Coconut Authority
Department of Trade and Industry – Region X
Bureau of Jail Management and Penology
Department of Trade and Industry - NEDAC
Philippine Marine Corps
Board of Investment
National Economic and Development Authority
Built-Operate-Transfer Center

6.

2019
18,539,764
13,883,573
10,086,296
10,057,694
9,357,942
8,766,756
6,941,364
6,438,667
6,008,873
5,677,704
4,667,121
4,188,208
3,338,175
3,101,385
2,721,973
2,718,794
2,654,124
1,567,982
1,000,175
927,381
622,145
490,980
452,904
334,120
196,989
122,545
40,550
30,182
16,926
16,604
15,008
9,838
9,452
4,939
1,757
1,514
33,278,408,622

2018
19,656,965
11,285,590
10,233,986
9,554,753
8,766,756
7,006,723
6,563,465
6,007,817
7,256,025
4,667,121
4,184,813
3,098,871
2,720,261
2,725,852
2,810,428
1,566,504
6,526,512
1,131,968
17,337,588
762,304
709,607,930
6,155,261
196,875
122,446
40,277
82,891
16,775
17,604
9,599,767
25,865,313
186,960,092
4,697
2,871,119
1,513
623,760
319,065
80,756
12,272
30,628,669,855

FINANCIAL ASSETS

This account consists of the following:
Investment in treasury bills

2019
-

2018
607,813,738

Upon maturity of Treasury Bills, Management decided not to acquire/invest on long-term Treasury
Bills but rather on Short-term Money Placement/Time Deposit that can be available anytime the
Corporation needs funds.
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7.

RECEIVABLES - CURRENT

This account consists of the following:
Loans and receivables account
Lease receivables
Other receivables

7.1

2019
8,178,902
170,680
1,364,047
9,713,629

2018
155,539,951
160,180
1,384,466
157,084,597

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

This account consists of receivable from:
Domestic sales
Service fees and other charges
Export sale and import commissions
Financial assistance granted to suppliers
Freight and other charges
Accrued interest on short-term placements
Allowance for impairment

2019
64,600,847
16,012,531
4,862,312
2,668,000
563,221
3,239,144
91,946,055
(83,767,153)
8,178,902

2018
64,374,355
15,375,483
4,837,833
2,668,000
563,221
151,488,212
239,307,104
(83,767,153)
155,539,951

The composition of Loans and Receivables – net of Allowance for impairment of
business units is shown below:
Countertrade
Custom bonded warehouse
Exports
Procurement
Accrued interest on short-term placements

2019
2,148,602
1,550,071
1,014,593
226,492
3,239,144
8,178,902

2018
1,331,716
1,729,910
990,113
151,488,212
155,539,951

2019
32,861,890
21,542,895
9,095,065
1,100,997
64,600,847

2018
32,635,398
21,542,895
9,095,065
1,100,997
64,374,355

The details of Domestic sales are as follows:

Government procurement
Pharmaceutical business
Cement sales
PAL facilities

Accounts receivables from pharmaceutical business consist mainly of accounts of
various Local Government Units (LGUs) which PITC finds difficult to collect despite
several collection letters sent in the previous years due to: (a) documents not turned
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over to PITC by the former distribution provider, and (b) non-recognition of the
receivables by the concerned LGUs because of changes in leadership and for lack of
documents.
The financial assistance granted to suppliers of P2.668 million pertains to the balance of
loan granted in calendar years (CYs) 2008 and 2009 to contractor, Strong Union MultiPurpose Cooperative (SUMCO) to fund its contract with the Department of Education
(DepEd) for the manufacture and supply of school furniture. SUMCO’s obligation with
DepEd was not completed and the supplier failed to pay its loan with PITC. Civil case
against the supplier was filed on September 19, 2011 with the Makati City Regional Trial
Court (RTC) Branch 147.
Legal cases were filed against some delinquent debtors (Note 32).
Lease Receivables are the rental from Manila Luxury Condominium and Gold Loop
Tower Condominium units.
Other receivables include due from officers and employees and other receivables from
resigned employees, janitors and security personnel who were not yet cleared with
PITC.
8.

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

This account covers the following:
Advances to contractors
Prepaid insurance
Creditable income tax
Input tax
Other prepayments

2019
226,596,650
1,760,385
1,757,848
324,697
1,387,715
231,827,295

2018
137,935,349
1,939,667
1,757,848
524,104
1,855
142,158,823

The Other Current Assets account pertains to prepayments, advances/mobilization fee
granted to contractors and deposit to Department of Budget and Management (DBM) for
purchase of office supplies.
9.

OTHER INVESTMENTS

This account covers the following:

Center for International Trade Expositions & Missions
Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company

2019

2018

625,000
64,300
689,300

625,000
64,300
689,300
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10.

RECEIVABLES – NON-CURRENT

This account consists of COA disallowances as follows:

Foreign travel rates
Penalties on late deliveries
Honoraria and others
Discretionary expense
Disallowances in CYs 1982 and 1983

2019

2018

863,198
742,350
586,441
132,085
4,892,730
7,216,804

863,198
742,350
586,441
132,085
4,892,730
7,216,804

Considering that most of the accounts due were incurred/disallowed as far back as 1982
to 1983, Management needs the documents to support these disallowances before
collections from the concerned persons/employees can be pursued. All original and
supporting documents were forwarded to COA in those years.
11.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Investment property includes land and condominium units which are held for capital
appreciation. The carrying amounts recognized in the Statement of Financial Position
reflect the fair values based on appraisal conducted in CYs 2010 and 2015. The
investment includes the following:
Manila Luxury Condominium units
Lot in Urdaneta, Pangasinan
Lot in Lucena City

2019
51,240,000
9,599,299
3,952,000
64,791,299

2018
51,240,000
9,599,299
3,952,000
64,791,299

The eight residential units in the Manila Luxury Condominium located at Pasig City were
acquired through swap deal arrangement entered in 1991 as payment for sale of
cement. The details of the property are as follows:
Unit No.
203
204
402
603
1004
1203
1402
Penthouse 4
Parking (9 lots)

Area (sq.m)
181.00
176.20
176.20
181.00
176.20
181.00
176.20
354.68
-

Appraised value
5,430,000
5,290,000
5,290,000
5,430,000
5,290,000
5,430,000
5,290,000
10,640,000
3,150,000
51,240,000

These properties have a total appraised value of P60.610 million per appraisal report by
CAL-FIL Appraisal and Management, Inc. dated September 21, 2015 and P72.029
37

million by the Commission on Audit (COA) per Appraisal/Valuation Review Report dated
May 25, 2017.
Some of the units are leased to tenants under short-term operating leases with rentals
payable monthly. Rental income arising from operating leases on investment property is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in the revenue.
Total rent income amounted to P3.385 million and P3.471 million in CYs 2019 and 2018,
respectively.
The land located in Urdaneta, Pangasinan with total cost of P7.217 million and an
aggregate lot area of 5,339 square meters (four contiguous lots) was acquired in 1997
through foreclosure sale in settlement of long outstanding account. In CYs 2011 and
2014, two lots with an area of 750 square meters/lot were disposed through sale. The
appraised values of these properties per latest appraisal review report of the COA dated
September 2, 2016 and CAL-FIL Appraisal and Management, Inc. dated January 15,
2010 were as follows:
Lot No. / Area
Lot A – 2,339 sq.m.
Lot D – 1,500 sq.m.
Total Appraised value – Urdaneta lot

TCT No.
T-225396
T-225399

2016 (COA)
5,145,800
3,300,000
8,445,800

2010 (CAL-FIL)
5,848,596
3,750,703
9,599,299

These properties have a total appraised value of P10.400 million per appraisal by CALFIL Appraisal and Management, Inc. dated September 21, 2015.
The parcel of land in Lucena City measuring 1,040 square meters with Transfer
Certificate of Title (TCT) No. T-55469 and costing P144,047 was appraised by TanGaute Appraisal Associates, Inc. in 2015 with a value of P3.952 million and by the COA
per Appraisal/Valuation Review Report dated August 22, 2016 with a value of P1.560
million.
12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The details of the account are shown below:
A
R

Lease asset
improvement

Furniture,
equipment and
machinery

Motor vehicles

Total

2,499,438
115,672
2,615,110

14,713,664
968,057
(4,697,391)
10,984,330

7,300,501
(1,912,400)
5,388,101

24,513,603
1,083,729
(6,609,791)
18,987,541

1,105,484
99,365
1,204,849
1,410,261
1,393,954

10,606,690
396,416
(4,350,913)
6,652,193
4,332,137
4,106,974

3,457,461
635,717
(1,906,716)
2,186,462
3,201,639
3,843,040

15,169,635
1,131,498
(6,257,629)
10,043,504
8,944,037
9,343,968

Cost:
Balance, January 1, 2019
Additions
Disposals / reclassification
Balance, December 31, 2019
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance, January 1, 2019
Additions
Disposals / reclassification
Balance, December 31, 2019
Net Book Value, December 31, 2019
Net Book Value, December 31, 2018
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13.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Due from subsidiaries/affiliates
Other current assets
Total current assets
Other investments
Trade and other receivables
Property, plant and equipment, net
Investment property
Investment in PITC Pharma, Inc.
Other assets
Total non-current assets
Financial liabilities
Inter-agency payables
Trust liabilities
Other payables
Estimated liability for employees’
benefits
Total liabilities
Total stockholders’ equity
Total temporary difference
Deferred tax
Liability
Assets
Beginning balances
Adjustments
TOTAL CHARGES FROM
DEFERRED INCOME TAX

14.

Future
taxable
amount

Future
deductible
amount

Carrying
amount
34,323,631,989
9,713,629
231,827,295
34,565,172,913
689,300
7,216,804
8,944,037
64,791,299
34,803,484
116,444,924
1,340,896
35,688,922
33,441,779,176
12,551,142

(1,760,385)
(1,760,385)
-

84,001,561
14,397,961
98,399,522
22,500,000
80,000
22,580,000
-

Tax base
34,323,631,989
93,715,190
14,397,961
230,066,910
34,661,812,050
689,300
7,216,804
8,944,037
64,791,299
22,500,000
34,671,485
138,812,925
1,340,896
35,688,922
33,441,779,176
12,551,142

14,280,509
33,505,640,645
300,000,000

-

(14,280,509)
(14,280,509)
-

33,491,360,136
300,000,000

Taxable
temporary
difference

Deductible
temporary
difference

1,760,385
1,760,385
-

84,001,561
14,397,961
98,399,522
22,500,000
80,000
22,580,000
-

1,760,385
30%
(528,116)

14,280,509
14,280,509
135,260,031
30%

(582,457)
54,341

40,578,009
40,673,493
(95,484)
(41,143)

OTHER NON - CURRENT ASSETS

This account consists of the following:

Receivables from Gold Loop Properties Inc. (GLPI)
Guaranty deposits
Other deposits
Less: Allowance for impairment

2019
32,815,775
1,987,709
80,000
34,883,484
(80,000)
34,803,484

2018
32,815,775
1,775,710
80,000
34,671,485
(80,000)
34,591,485

Receivables from GLPI arose from the sale of cement in 1991. The account for P25.724
million is under a swap deal for 1,333.925 metric tons of cement sold by PITC to GLPI
vis-a-vis condominium units owned by GLPI.
PITC has physical possession of the nine condominium units but without the title to the
property. PITC has obtained favorable decision from the Housing and Land Use
Regulatory Board (HLURB) for transfer of titles of the property, which was upheld by the
Office of the President, Malacañang on January 7, 2000. Both the Court of Appeals and
the Supreme Court have denied the appeals filed by GLPI and on August 2, 2002, the
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favorable decision by the Supreme Court became final, and PITC is now awaiting the
remand of the records to the HLURB.
Collection of proceeds on another account of GLPI for P7.092 million was resolved with
finality by the Supreme Court with the issuance of an entry of judgment. However, since
the property is co-owned only by GLPI with Ms. Zapanta, in case PITC consolidates
ownership, it will merely co-own the property with Ms. Zapanta. PITC may wish to
consider any offer from GLPI to re-purchase the assets from PITC.
15.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

This account consists of unpaid charges and purchases from suppliers of items for sale
of the following PITC business units:

Accounts payable - Pharmaceuticals
Due to officers and employees

16.

2019

2018

1,325,028
15,868
1,340,896

1,325,028
124,214
1,449,242

2019
13,956,768
11,900,594
8,488,045
823,954
275,808
192,000
50,367
1,386
35,688,922

2018
18,869,733
14,598,787
883,600
305,231
417,000
51,995
2,773
35,129,119

2019
136,002,116
33,305,777,060
33,441,779,176

2018
88,401,790
30,649,013,306
30,737,415,096

INTER-AGENCY PAYABLES

This account consists of liabilities to the following:
Bureau of Internal Revenue
Commission on Audit
Bureau of Treasury
Government Service Insurance System
Home Development Mutual Fund
Office of the Government Corporate Counsel
Philippine Health Insurance Corporation
National Home Mortgage Finance Corporation

17.

TRUST LIABILITIES

This account consists of liabilities to the following:
Guaranty/security deposits payable
Customers’ deposit payable

Guaranty/Security deposits pertain mainly to the 10 per cent retention money withheld
from payment to contractors/suppliers which are due for release within the next
succeeding year upon full performance of their contracted obligations.
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Customers’ Deposits comprise of the following:
Fund Transfer by client agencies:
Advance Science and Technology Institute
Armed Forces of the Philippines
Atrium of Makati Condominium Corporation
Bataan General Hospital
Board of Investment
Built-Operate-Transfer Center
Bureau of Corrections
Bureau of Customs
Bureau of Fire Protection - NCR
Bureau of Fire Protection - NHQ
Bureau of Fire Protection – Region III
Bureau of Jail Management and Penology
Commission on Higher Education
Construction Industry Authority of the Philippines
Department of Energy
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Department of Environment and Natural Resources – Region I
Department of Foreign Affairs
Department of Health
Department of Health – Region I
Department of Health – Region VII
Department of Information and Communications Technology
Department of National Defense
Department of Social Welfare and Development
Department of Trade and Industry – Central Office
Department of Trade and Industry – NCRO
Department of Trade and Industry - NEDAC
Department of Trade and Industry – Region III
Department of Trade and Industry – Region IV A
Department of Trade and Industry – Region IX
Department of Trade and Industry – Region VII
Department of Trade and Industry – Region VIII
Department of Trade and Industry – Region X
Department of Trade and Industry – Region XI
Department of Transportation
Design Center of the Philippines
Dr. Jose Fabella Memorial Hospital
Early Childhood Care Development Council
Environmental Management Bureau
Finance Service Unit – Marine Barracks
Food and Drug Administration
Information and Communications Technology Office
Land Management Bureau
Las Piñas General Hospital and Satellite Trauma Center
Manila Bay Coordinating Office
Maritime Industry Authority
National Bureau of Investigation
National Computer Center
National Economic and Development Authority
Naval Education and Training Commission
Office for Transportation Security

2019

2018

181,815,024
552,853,802
121,541,881
10,086,296
196,989
2,805,845,778
63,704,578
3,390,895,282
27,332,572
1,757
708,880,285
3,338,175
33,789,538
120,080,790
10,057,694
490,980
2,149,989,230
19,654,664
4,667,121
3,534,274,750
334,120
271,911,540
622,145
3,101,385
1,514
122,545
40,550
16,926
2,721,973
6,438,667
4,939
1,567,982
452,904
13,883,573
217,863,792
306,833,479
401,914,851
31,204,562
142,656,960
9,838
18,539,764
6,941,364
8,766,756
347,268,666
103,572,129
2,654,124
52,210,186
30,867,931

323,375,198
567,330,876
11,285,590
319,065
12,272
196,875
2,093,568,790
68,126,629
3,393,081,783
27,310,425
2,871,119
800,653,366
24,820,856
121,598,535
10,233,986
762,304
2,572,506,168
19,638,738
4,667,121
3,537,631,609
6,155,261
22,019,603
17,337,588
3,098,871
1,513
122,446
40,277
16,775
2,720,261
6,563,465
4,697
1,566,504
709,607,930
173,543,183
270,118,666
406,394,168
37,249,658
357,623,514
25,865,313
19,656,965
7,006,723
8,766,756
356,206,066
103,758,332
2,810,428
80,756
65,605,195
30,948,472
41

Office of the Civil Defense
Ospital ng Palawan
Philippine Air Force
Philippine Army
Philippine Center for Economic Development
Philippine Coast Guard
Philippine Coconut Authority
Philippine Drug Enforcement Agency
Philippine Marine Corps
Philippine Military Academy
Philippine National Police
Philippine Navy
Philippine Ports Authority
Philippine State College of Aeronautics
Philippine Trade and Training Center
Philippine Veterans Affairs Office
Philvidec Industrial Estate Authority
Power Sector Assets and Liabilities Management Corporation
Presidential Security Group
Professional Regulation Commission
Research Institute of Tropical Medicine
San Lorenzo Ruiz Women's Hospital
Sugar Regulatory Administration
Technical Education and Skills Development Authority
University of Philippines - Iloilo
University of the Philippines – Los Baños
University of the Philippines - Mindanao
University of the Philippines – National Institute for Health
University of the Philippines - PGH
University of the Philippines Systems
Veterans Medical Memorial Center
Vicente Sotto Memorial Medical Center
Total fund transfer by client agencies
Rental deposits on condominium units
Other customer deposits

2019
502,223,081
4,188,208
245,884,167
5,487,588,569
927,381
528,581,651
9,452
5,677,704
329,660,212
1,033,834,036
1,908,552,964
30,182
89,372,469
2,718,794
6,008,873
29,482,171
16,604
15,008
19,452,000
1,180,936,226
25,003,833
566,031,641
3,026,237,904
9,357,942
556,186,389
125,626,869
1,000,175
1,014,222,403
768,110,936
19,386,538
80,061,889
33,278,408,622
1,175,463
26,192,975
33,305,777,060

2018
336,514,797
4,184,813
230,001,917
4,702,011,295
1,131,968
1,364,644,200
186,960,092
7,256,025
623,760
347,695,803
1,208,684,055
2,128,548,206
82,891
89,327,598
2,725,852
6,007,817
30,024,541
17,604
9,599,767
23,234,616
1,185,507,753
9,554,753
561,492,411
174,510,627
6,526,512
1,277,744,735
424,098,274
15,012,270
80,064,212
30,628,669,855
1,161,417
19,182,034
30,649,013,306

Fund transfers from the different government agencies were provided for the
procurement of various requested items.
Rental deposits on condominium units were made by the tenants of the PITC’s units at
the Manila Luxury and Gold Loop Condominium.
Other customer’s deposits pertain mainly to the funds of the Bids and Awards
Committees in the total amount of P24.858 million and P18.271 million as of December
31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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18.

OTHER PAYABLES

This account is composed of the following:
2019
2,573,057
9,978,085
12,551,142

Payable-others
Accrued expenses

2018
12,832,714
5,957,520
18,790,234

Payable-others pertain mainly to the payables to resigned employees who did not seek
clearance upon separation from the Corporation.
Accrued expenses pertain to PITC’s operational expenses such as, salaries and wages,
utility charges and rental expenses which were incurred as of the end of the year.

19.

PROVISIONS

This account refers to the money value of accumulated vacation and sick leave credits of
PITC employees.
20.

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The authorized capital of PITC is 3,000,000 shares at par value of P100 per share. The
account consists of the fully paid shares of the following:
Shareholders
National Development Company
Development Bank of the Philippines

21.

No. of shares
2,985,000
15,000
3,000,000

Amount
298,500,000
1,500,000
300,000,000

Percentage
99.50
0.50
100.00

SERVICE AND BUSINESS INCOME

This account consists of the following:

Processing fees
Fees and commission income
Service income
Rent/lease income
Sales revenue
Interest income

21.1

2019

2018

75,893
272,728
170,955,381
3,384,846
9,334,821
596,114,413
780,138,082

68,411
1,262,499
137,296,864
3,471,047
5,052,416
545,604,045
692,755,282

Fees and Commission Income

The Commission income was sourced from indent export sales of goods.
43

21.2

Service Income

The service income was generated from the following:

Government outsourcing/procurement
CBTW and warehousing charges
Countertrade
Imports

2019
146,035,999
19,767,056
5,152,326
170,955,381

2018
111,133,787
24,176,703
1,986,374
137,296,864

The service income from government outsourcing pertains to the service fees imposed
on the procurement processed by PITC in behalf of client government agencies.
21.3

Sales Revenue

Income from sales of goods was sourced from various transactions as presented
hereunder:
2019
9,334,821
9,334,821

Exports
Imports

2018
5,052,416
5,052,416

Sales from government outsourcing pertain to the sales of goods where PITC is the
supplier on record and issued Sales Invoice to the client/buyer.
22.

GAINS

This account consists of the following:

Gain on foreign exchange (FOREX)

23.

2019
3,968,894

2018
8,175,435

2019
67,179
2,273
1,393
294
71,139

2018
142,051
16,787
2,854
336
162,028

OTHER NON-OPERATING INCOME

This account consists of the following:
Collection of share on utilities
Penalty for late payment/returned check
Sale of old newspaper
Commission from NHMFC
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24.

PERSONNEL SERVICES

This account consists of the following:
Salaries and wages-regular
Year- end bonuses
Retirement/life insurance premiums
Transportation expense
Representation expense
Personnel economic relief allowance
Pag-IBIG fund contribution
Clothing/uniform allowance
Other bonuses and allowances-rice allowance
PhilHealth contributions
Employees’ compensation insurance

25.

2019
37,772,381
6,879,768
4,368,896
1,981,975
1,942,188
1,338,639
609,368
342,833
304,845
294,566
67,000
55,902,459

2018
36,533,927
6,386,943
4,235,005
2,176,941
2,137,054
1,444,538
504,190
376,633
319,408
330,803
72,200
54,517,642

MAINTENANCE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

This account consists of the following:
Salaries and wages – casual/contractual
Rent/lease expenses
Auditing services
Supplies and materials
Janitorial services
Consultancy expense
Electricity expense
Travel expenses
Security services
Insurance expense
Taxes and licenses
Representation expenses
Communication services
Training & scholarship expenses
Other professional services
Legal services
Repairs and maintenance
Fuel, oil and lubricants
Membership dues & contributions
Broker’s fee
Subscription expense
Advertising, promotional and marketing expenses
Water expense
Repairs and maintenance – land transportation
Directors’ allowance
Extraordinary and miscellaneous expenses
Transportation and delivery expense
Documentary stamp tax expense
Printing and publication expense
Other maintenance & operating expenses

2019
16,790,838
9,445,083
4,455,305
4,123,429
2,888,551
2,159,907
2,089,309
2,048,963
2,011,891
1,870,114
1,668,554
1,610,868
1,489,926
1,129,838
988,439
699,000
625,218
495,327
343,782
263,109
237,294
226,885
215,263
102,197
90,000
60,560
31,016
90
7,661,760
65,822,516

2018
10,119,576
7,611,506
4,147,460
3,920,883
2,724,147
539,091
1,930,536
1,574,359
2,107,527
2,888,030
1,249,914
1,508,541
1,630,855
884,469
752,800
644,000
611,987
559,185
339,772
220,529
90,693
4,728,520
181,955
99,734
60,000
51,995
86,168
98,048
9,589
20,202,424
71,574,293
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26.

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Bank charges

27.

2019
12,874

2018
19,028

2019
8,488,046
8,488,046
8,488,046

2018
4,033,678
4,033,678
4,033,678

2019
1,131,498
7,461,718
319,161
8,912,377

2018
1,218,831
3,633,078
4,851,909

DIRECT COSTS

The details of Cost of Sales are shown below:

Merchandise inventory, beginning
Add : Purchases during the year
Goods available for sale during the year
Less: Merchandise inventory, ending

28.

NON-CASH EXPENSES

This account consists of the following:
Depreciation – property, plant and equipment
Loss on FOREX
Loss on sale of assets

29.

FUND TRANSFERS/REMITTANCES BY CLIENT AGENCIES

The funds transferred by client agencies for the procurement of various items consist of
the following:
Agency
Technical Education & Skills Development Authority
Philippine Army
Bureau of Customs
Sugar Regulatory Administration
Philippine Coast Guard
University of the Philippines - Systems
Philippine Air Force
Department of Social Welfare and Development – Central Office
Office of the Civil Defense
Early Childhood Care and Development Council
Presidential Security Group
Atrium of Makati Condominium Corporation
Armed Forces of the Philippines
Dr. Jose Fabella Memorial Hospital
Design Center of the Philippines
AFP Health Service Command

2019
3,025,278,367
3,010,694,207
870,161,220
565,909,878
538,156,936
344,332,420
306,117,440
265,710,693
192,097,685
151,268,344
123,875,000
121,515,417
47,439,362
44,709,600
13,875,000
9,862,302

2018
3,687,708,101
1,343,300,640
1,215,993,249
273,768,000
418,835,997
147,313,939
22,878,977
19,238,187
551,143,071
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Agency
Department of Energy
Maritime Industry Authority
University of the Philippines- Los Baños
Veterans Memorial Medical Center
Construction Industry Authority of the Philippines
Department of Information & Technology
Philippine Navy
Department of Transportation
Research Institute of Tropical Medicine
Food and Drug Administration
University of the Philippines – Mindanao
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
National Bureau of Investigation
Environmental Management Bureau
Philippine State College of Aeronautics
Finance Service Unit – Marine Barracks
Philvidec Industrial Authority
Department of Health
Professional Regulation Commission
Bureau of Fire Protection – Region III
Department of Trade and Industry – CO
Department of Environment and Natural Resources–RO1
Land Management Bureau
Philippine Veterans Affairs Office
Department of Trade and Industry - NCRO
Department of National Defense

30.

TAXES

30.1

Current and deferred taxes

2019
9,491,524
5,000,000
5,000,000
4,750,351
3,336,046
9,658,581,792

2018
24,802,000
89,708,007
41,670,022
3,224,386,321
1,716,415,226
709,354,800
489,316,000
178,566,442
175,849,689
109,322,918
103,705,779
94,989,960
75,200,000
36,378,449
30,000,000
25,268,645
23,223,538
19,757,756
18,163,520
10,228,592
6,059,840
6,004,000
3,098,265
2,865,000
14,894,514,930

Pursuant to the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) Revenue Regulation (RR) No. 9–98,
the Corporation is subject to a Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) of two per cent of
the Gross Income less Cost of Services or the normal Income Tax Rate, whichever is
higher.
For CY 2019, the Corporation has a net taxable income amounting to P52.100 million
which resulted in a P15.657 million income tax expense and P1.388 million prepaid
income tax.
The component of the benefit from deferred income tax reported in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Statement of Changes in Equity relates to the allowance for
doubtful accounts and estimated liability for employees’ benefits as shown in detailed in
Note 13.
30.2

Recent Tax Regulations

On May 24, 2005, Republic Act (RA) No. 9337, amending certain sections of the
National Internal Revenue Code of 1997, was signed into law and became effective
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beginning on November 1, 2005. The following are the major changes brought about by
RA No. 9337 that are currently relevant to the Corporation:
(a)

Revenue Corporate Income Tax (RCIT) rate was reduced from 32 per cent to
30 per cent beginning on January 1, 2009; and

(b)

Value Added Tax rate was increased from 10 per cent to 12 per cent effective on
February 1, 2006.

30.3

Revenue Regulation 15-2010

In compliance with the requirements set forth by Revenue Regulation No. 15-2010,
hereunder are the information on taxes, duties and licenses fees paid or accrued during
the taxable year.
(a)

The Corporation is a VAT-registered company with VAT output tax declaration of
P21.975 million for the year based on the amount reflected in the Sales and
Service Income Account of P183.121 million.

(b)

The Corporation has zero-rated/exempt sales amounting to P1.073 million
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 106 and 109 of RA No. 9337.

(c)

The amount of VAT Input taxes claimed are broken down as follows:

Capital goods subject for amortization
Goods other than for resale or manufacture
Capital goods not subject to amortization
Services lodged under other accounts
Claims for creditable withholding VAT
Balance, end of the year

(d)

Other Taxes & Licenses:

Local
Real property taxes
Mayor’s permit
National
BIR annual registration

(e)

148,794
104,002
5,457,709
221,170
5,931,675

300,796
1,316,122

1,000

The amount of withholding taxes paid/accrued for the year amounted to:

Tax on compensation and benefits
Creditable withholding taxes
Final withholding tax

5,806,809
96,547,862
-
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31.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Corporation’s related parties include its parent corporation, subsidiary, the
Corporation’s key management and others as described below.
31.1

Due from/to subsidiaries – then PITC Pharma, Inc. (PPI), now Philippine
Pharma Procurement, Inc. (PPPI)

The Corporation provides the utilization of the credit line facilities relative to the
importation of pharmaceutical inventory to its subsidiary, PPPI, and direct expenses
incurred in CY 2007. Goods are purchased on the basis of the price lists in force with
non-related parties. The related outstanding payables for goods purchased in CYs 2009
and 2008 are presented as part of Trade and Other Payables account in the Statement
of Financial Position. The related payments are presented in the Statement of Cash
Flows.
Full allowance for doubtful account was provided for the total receivable from PPPI
amounting to P14.398 million. The negative financial position of PPPI indicates
uncollectibility of the account.
31.2

Investment in PPPI

As a key strategy to develop its pharmaceutical program focusing on the expansion of its
Botika ng Bayan accredited retail outlets as well as to strengthen institutional linkages
with key government agencies and local government units, PITC and the National
Development Company (NDC) have agreed to collaborate in the setting up of a
corporate vehicle that shall exclusively pursue the government’s pharmaceutical
program under EO No. 442 and likewise carry out the business of, among others,
sourcing, selling, manufacturing and distributing low cost quality medicines.
On November 9, 2005, the PPPI (formerly known as Producer’s Venture Capital
Corporation and PPI) was incorporated per Amended Articles of Incorporation and
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Corporation Registration No. 99913. Its
primary purpose, among others, is to engage in the sourcing, sale and/or distributing of
pharmaceutical products and other related commercial ventures thereof.
As evidenced by the Shareholders’ Agreement, NDC and PITC agreed that the
Shareholders shall subscribe to and fully pay the total subscriptions in capital stock of
the Corporation. PITC’s investments of P22.500 million consist of 225,000 shares with
par value of P100.
Since its first year of operation in CY 2006, PPPI, however, has incurred consistent loss
and has been in a negative financial position from CY 2007. In view of the increasing
capital deficiency, there is no indication that the investment can be recovered. Thus,
allowance for decline in value was provided for the total investment account.
31.3

Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Corporation

The compensation of key management personnel included in the Administrative
Expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income amounted to P10.534 million and
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P10.553 million for the years 2019 and 2018, respectively, as short-term employee
benefits.
Short-term employee benefits include annual salaries, allowances, honoraria, and other
non-monetary benefits.
32.

LEGAL CASES

PITC as Petitioner
1.

PITC vs. Pacific Threshold Corporation (PTC)
Civil Case No. 94-2266
RTC-Pasig City, Branch 139
CA-G.R. CV 97458, Court of Appeals, Manila
Nature: Specific performance and sum of money
Status: On 03 October 2018, the Petition for Review was granted by the
Supreme Court. Awaiting Court’s Order.

2.

PITC vs. Gold Loop Properties, Inc., et al.
HLRB Case No. REM-A-950330-0042
HLRB-Quezon City
Nature: Execution of a favorable decision
Status: Pending implementation of the HLURB’s Decision re: Execution

3.

PITC vs. SUMCO, et al.
Civil Case No. 11-918
RTC-Makati City, Branch 147
Nature: For Sum of Money
Status: On 12 April 2013, a Decision was issued in PITC’s favor. Full
implementation and satisfaction of the Court’s final and executory
judgment depends on whether defendants have properties that may be
subject of levy or garnishment.

4.

PITC vs. SUMCO and Investors Assurance Corporation
Civil Case No. 12-164
RTC-Makati City, Branch 149
Nature: For Sum of Money and Damages
Status: PITC’s Complaint was partially granted on 02 November 2017 Decision.
For filing of Writ of Execution

5.

PITC vs. Stronghold Insurance Co. Inc. (SICI)
Adm. Case No. RD 497
Insurance Commission
(CA-G.R. SP No. 151388; Court of Appeals Manila)
Nature: For Cancellation and Suspension of License
Status: In a letter dated 27 June 2019, signed by Stronghold Insurance
Corporation, Inc.’s Senior Vice President, Atty. Florentino Garces, SICI
had already transmitted the check in the amount of Pesos: One Million
(P1,000,000.00) to PITC as settlement
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PITC as Defendant
6.

Gerardo Kaimo vs. PITC, et al.
Civil Case No. 69472
RTC-Pasig City, Branch 67
Nature: Annulment of Execution Sale
Status: Received 22 July 2019 Comments/Opposition (Re: Defendant PITC’s
Formal Offer of Evidence) on 7 August 2019. Awaiting Court’s
Resolution.

7.

System Factors Company vs. PITC
Civil Case No. 70460
RTC-Pasig City, Branch 152
Nature: Recovery of Ownership
Status: Comment/Opposition (Re: Defendant PITC’s Formal Offer of Evidence)
on 7 August 2019. Awaiting Court’s Resolution

Cases Filed with Decision/Case Closed
8.

Metro Arms Corp. vs. PITC, et al.
SCA No. 3469-PSG
RTC-Pasig City, Branch 161
Nature: Petition for Certiorari
Status: Order dismissed by the Court of Appeals.

9.

PITC vs. Hon. Nicanor A. Manalo, Jr. and Metro Arms Corp.
CA-G.R. SP No. 116306
Court of Appeals
Nature: Petition for Review
Status: Decided in favor of PITC ordering Special Civic Action (SCA) pending in
RTC-Pasig dismissed.

10.

Metro Arms vs. PITC
SC G.R. 199288
Nature: Certiorari and Injunction with prayer for the issuance of a TRO and/or
Writ of Preliminary Injunction

Legal cases were filed against some debtors who could not be pursued to final
conclusion due to the death of the debtors or due to the difficulty in locating the debtor/s
or their assets despite efforts to serve summons or letters on them, to wit:

DEBTOR
Meadowlark Supply
Center/ Jesus
Maglutac & Albert
Maglutac

AMOUNT OF
RECEIVABLE
P6,830,062.50

CASE NO.

STATUS

Criminal Case
No. 202615 for
Violation of BP
22,
MTC
Branch
61,
Makati City

Judgment of conviction but accused
Jesus Maglutac died shortly after
and PITC attempted to execute on
properties in their names; however,
futile since assets were previously
mortgaged
and
eventually
foreclosed by BPI. Case closed.
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DEBTOR

AMOUNT OF
RECEIVABLE

CASE NO.

STATUS

Nurisa-Jeg/
Isaias Provendido

P5,000,000.00

Civil Case No.
95-086
for
collection with
Preliminary
Attachment

Debtor’s property in Butuan City
was foreclosed by PITC after
execution sale due to the death of
the debtor.
TCT could not be
obtained as no DAR clearance
could be obtained. Case closed.

J & F Import Export

P1,892,000.00

Criminal Case
No. 148 , MTC
Br. Makati

Accused at large/cannot be located
at last known address. Case
archived.

Felicitas Macalintal

P3,455,176.53

Criminal Case
No.
91-7258,
MTC Makati for
BP 22

Judgment of conviction but no
leviable assets. Case closed.
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PART II - OBSERVATIONS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

PART II – OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

1.

The balances of fund transfers totaling P9.176 billion from various Source
Agencies (SAs), specifically national government agencies (NGAs), for the
periods calendar years (CYs) 2009 to 2019 remained unutilized as of
December 31, 2019 due to pending procurements. These unutilized fund
transfers were not yet returned to the concerned client-government
agencies and/or the National Government, contrary to the provision under
Section 10 of the General Appropriations Act (GAA) for Fiscal Year (FY)
2019, on the Reversion, Closure and Transfer of Special Accounts,
Fiduciary or Trust Funds, Revolving Funds and Unauthorized Accounts
and the pertinent provision of the prior years’ GAAs.
1.1

Section 10 of GAA for FY 2019, on the Reversion, Closure and Transfer
of Special Accounts, Fiduciary or Trust Funds, Revolving Funds and
Unauthorized Accounts provides that:
Department, bureaus, offices and instrumentalities of the
National Government, including Constitutional Offices
enjoying fiscal economy and SUCs are mandated to close
revert all balances of Special Accounts, Fiduciary or Trust
Funds, and Revolving Funds to the General Funds of the
following instances : (i) when there is no legal basis for its
creation; (ii) when their terms have expired for; (iii) when
they are no longer necessary for the attainment of the
purposes for which said funds were established.

1.2

This is a reiteration with updates of the observation embodied in the
CY 2018 Annual Audit Report (AAR) as Management was not able to fully
implement the recommendations. As contained in the CY 2018 AAR, it
was observed that PITC accepted funds transfers from various SAs,
specifically the national government agencies (NGAs), despite the
absence of Terms of Reference (TORs) and Agency Outsourcing
Requests (AORs), thus procurements could not be immediately pursued
that resulted in the accumulation of idle funds in the custody of PITC.

1.3

Review of the Status of Fund Transfers as of December 31, 2019 which
was furnished by the PITC to the Audit Team disclosed that the Military
Procurement Group (MPG) and the Government Procurement Group
(GPG) have various projects pending procurements totaling P9.176
billion, since PITC is still waiting for the submission of the TORs, among
others.

1.4

Moreover, out of the unutilized balances of P9.176 billion as of December
31, 2019, it was noted that P8.022 billion or 87.42 per cent were fund
transfers for the periods CYs 2009 to 2018, of which P4.543 billion have
no TORs yet, while P3.479 billion were on-hold awaiting the amended
TOR/AOR as requested by the concerned SAs.
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1.5

Further, during the CY 2019, it was observed that PITC still accepted
funds from various SAs without TORs. Based on the Status of Fund
Transfers as of December 31, 2019, out of the total fund transfers of
P1.154 billion in CY 2019, P670.573 million have no TORs, while fund
transfers totaling P483.308 million were on-hold awaiting amended the
TOR/AOR as requested also by the concerned SAs.

1.6

The summary of the unutilized funds transfers totaling P9.176 billion with
pending procurements as of December 31, 2019 due to reasons
mentioned above is presented in Table 1 and the details thereof are
presented in Annex A, Part IV of this Report.
Table 1 - Unutilized Funds Transfers from SAs Pending Procurements
as of December 31, 2019

PITC Department
GPG
MPG
Total

Year(s) Funds
were transferred to
PITC
2009 to 2018
2019

Awaiting TOR from
SAs
P4,543,220,740
670,572,918
P5,213,793,658

On-hold (awaiting
amended
TOR/AOR)
P3,479,091,102
483,308,088
P3,962,399,190

Total
P8,022,311,842
1,153,881,006
P9,176,192,848

1.7

The Audit Team would like to emphasize that the unutilized fund transfers
from various SAs having been idle in the custody of PITC for many years
now, may have lost their intended purposes as mentioned in Section 10 of
the GAA of FY 2019. Thus, reverting these funds to the General Fund as
required by law, could have provided the National Government of the
much-needed funds for its various programs and projects.

1.8

We reiterated
Management:

1.9

our

previous

year’s

recommendations

that

a.

Direct the concerned official of PITC to immediately revert to
the SAs/General Fund/Bureau of the Treasury (BTr) the
unutilized fund transfers, particularly those idle funds in the
PITC’s custody for more than one year pursuant to Section 10
of the GAA of FY 2019; and

b.

Coordinate with the concerned SAs, for the CY 2019 fund
transfers with pending procurements due to non-submission of
TOR and other necessary documents, to comply with all the
requirements within a specific period; otherwise, return the
funds to them or to the BTr.

Management commented that:
a.

Funds transferred and funds obligated for a specific project which
are no longer needed by the client will be returned to the General
Fund/Bureau of Treasury either by PITC or through the concerned
SA.
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b.

1.10

2.

PITC will immediately coordinate with SAs to submit their complete
TOR/AOR and other necessary documents on or before September
15, 2020.

As a rejoinder, the Audit Team appreciated Management’s commitment to
implement all the recommendations, which will be monitored in the CY
2020 audit.

The unused balances of fund transfers from various completed
procurement projects aggregating P489.046 million were not returned to
the concerned SAs as of December 31, 2019, instead P404.440 million or 83
per cent would be used to finance other projects, contrary to the pertinent
provisions of COA Circular No. 94-013 dated December 13, 1994 and
General Provisions of the prior years’ GAA.
2.1

COA Circular No. 94-013 dated December 13, 1994 provides the
guidelines on the grant, utilization and liquidation of funds transferred to
implementing agencies. Item 6.7 of the said Circular, on the duties and
responsibilities of the implementing agency, specifically instructs the
“return to the source agency any unused balance and refund of
disallowance upon completion of the project.”

2.2

In addition, Section 83 of the FY 2018 GAA provides that “unexpended
balances of appropriation authorized in this Act shall revert to the General
Fund at the end of the validity of appropriation provided under Section 61
hereof and shall not be available for expenditure except by subsequent
legislative enactment.’’

2.3

This is a reiteration with updates of the observation embodied in the
CY 2018 AAR as Management was unable to fully implement the
recommendations. It is worth mentioning that in CY 2019 to partially
comply with the recommendation, the PITC Management returned the
amount of P242.629 million and P270.943 million of unused balances
under the military and government accounts, respectively.

2.4

Verification, however, of the pertinent reports, subsidiary records, and
other documents disclosed that a total of P489.046 million unused
balances of fund transfers from completed procurement projects of
various SAs still remained in the PITC’s books as of December 31, 2019
and this amount was not returned to the respective SA or to the General
Fund of the National Government through the Bureau of the Treasury
(BTr), thereby depriving the SAs and the National Government of the use
of these funds for other government programs or projects.

2.5

The summary of the unused balances of fund transfers from completed
procurement projects as of December 31, 2019 is shown in Table 2.
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Table 2 - Summary of Unutilized/Unused Balances of Fund Transfers from
Various SAs.
Government Agency
Philippine Army

Year of fund transfer
2007, 2008, 2009,
2011, 2012, 2014,
2016, 2017, 2018

Commission on Higher Education (CHEDPCARI)
Philippine Coast Guard
Early Childhood Care and Development
Council
Philippine Navy
Philippine Military Academy
University of the Philippines – Los Baños
University of the Philippines Manila –NIH
Department of Trade & Industry
Armed Forces of the Philippines - GHQ
Department of Social Welfare &
Development (Central Office)
Department of Trade and Industry (DTI) –
Region III
Philippine National Police
Total

2016
2017, 2018
2015, 2017, 2016,
2018

Balance as of
December 31, 2019
P439,124,145
29,438,339
5,675,896

2015,2017

5,022,409
4,661,456
1,476,802

2015, 2016
2015
2018
2017, 2018

1,013,716
1,000,175
604,354
459,863
396,547

2013

118,900
53,798
P489,046,400

2.6

Further review of the Status of Fund Transfers as of December 31, 2019
showed that P404.440 million or 83 per cent of the total P489.046 million
unused balances of the fund transfers would be utilized for other projects.
Based on the copies of the Agency Outsourcing Requests (AORs) from
various SAs supporting the residual utilizations, furnished to the Audit
Team, the unused balances of fund transfers for completed projects from
CYs 2015 to 2017 will be utilized to fund projects for the CY 2019,
contrary to the pertinent General Provisions of the GAAs for FYs 2015 to
2018, which covered the period of fund transfers under audit.

2.7

The GAA is clear that the unused balances from fund transfer shall be
reverted to the General Fund and shall not be available for any other
purpose except those authorized by proper legislative act.

2.8

We reiterated
Management:
a.

our

previous

year’s

recommendations

that

Return the unused balances of fund transfers for completed
projects to the concerned SAs or to the BTr in accordance with
COA Circular No. 94-013 dated December 13, 1994 and furnish
the Audit Team copies of documents pertaining thereto, for
validation purposes; and
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b.

2.9

2.10

3.

Stop the practice of utilizing the unused balances from
completed projects for other purpose, unless authorized in
accordance with the provisions of the GAA.

Management agreed with the recommendations and commented that they
will process the return of the unutilized balances from fund transferred. Of
the total unutilized balances of P489.046 million of completed projects
which remained in the PITC books as of December 31, 2019, P43.324
million represents funds from SAs under the GPG. A closer scrutiny of the
amounts showed that the total unutilized balance needs to be adjusted as
the entire balance per project was erroneously classified as “unutilized”.
These balances included payables to suppliers whose complete
documents have not yet been submitted to PITC for processing. The
corrected unutilized balance as of December 31, 2019 of SAs under GPG
should be P40.073 million with the following status as of August 12, 2020:
a.

Some amounts have been returned to the concerned SAs after
December 31, 2019, although check payments have not yet been
picked up by SAs. In fact, check for DTI Region III has turned stale
and will need to be replaced.

b.

Some checks for return have been prepared prior to receipt of the
Audit Observation Memorandum (AOM). Total balance for return to
SAs within August 2020 is P36.053 million.

As a rejoinder, the Audit Team appreciated Management’s initial action to
return to the concerned SAs the unutilized balances of fund transfers from
completed projects. Their full implementation of the recommendations will
be monitored in the CY 2020 audit.

Interest earnings aggregating P581.135 million as of December 31, 2019 on
fund transfers from various SAs invested in Money Market Placement were
recorded as income of PITC, instead of remitting the same to the National
Treasury which is not in accordance with Section 65 of Presidential Decree
(PD) No. 1445 and Department of Finance (DOF) Circular No. 01-2017 dated
May 11, 2017. It should be noted however that on April 6, 2020 in
compliance with Republic Act (RA) No. 7656, otherwise known as the
“Dividend Law”, PITC remitted 50 per cent of the subject interest income or
P290.568 million to the Bureau of the Treasury (BTr).
3.1

Section 65 (1) of PD No. 1445 provides that: “Unless otherwise
specifically provided by law, income accruing to the agencies by virtue of
the provisions of law, orders and regulations shall be deposited in the
National Treasury or in any duly authorized government depository, and
shall accrue to the unappropriated surplus of the General Fund of the
Governmentt.”

3.2

Likewise, Section 5.3.2 of DOF Circular No. 01-2017 dated May 11, 2017,
as amended, states that: “all interest income earned by deposits of
NGAs/GOCCs shall be remitted quarterly to the National Treasury, unless
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expressly provided by law that interest earnings of the account shall
accrue to the fund for which the account was opened or maintained.”
3.3

This is a reiteration with updates of the observation contained in the
previous year’s AAR as PITC did not fully implement the corresponding
recommendation. For the year ended December 31, 2018, interest
income earned from money market placement maintained for the different
government agencies amounted to P570.078 million which was
recognized by PITC as income in CY 2018.

3.4

Article II of the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with the SA provides
that interest earned based on the prevailing interest rate on interest
bearing savings or checking account/s with the authorized government
depository banks at the time of fund transfer shall accrue to the SA.
However, portions of these funds held in trust were also invested in a high
yield short-term money market placement at the Land Bank of the
Philippines (LBP) and Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP).

3.5

Review of the accounting records and other documents pertaining to
funds transferred from various SAs revealed that during CY 2019,
earnings of the transferred funds from high yield savings account/money
market placement amounted to P581.135 million. It was noted, however,
that said earnings were not remitted to the National Treasury instead, the
same were recorded as income of PITC as of December 31, 2019,
contrary to the aforementioned law and regulation.

3.6

It is noteworthy to mention however that on April 6, 2020, PITC remitted
50 per cent of the subject interest income or P290.568 million to the
Bureau of the Treasury (BTr) as dividend to the National Government, in
compliance with RA No. 7656, otherwise known as the “Dividend Law.”

3.7

We reiterated our previous year’s recommendation that Management
settle/remit to the National Treasury/ BTr all interest earnings of the
fund transfers in compliance with Section 65 of PD No. 1445 and
DOF Circular No. 01-2017 and inform the client-government
agencies of the remittance thereof.

3.8

Management commented that:
a.

Both Section 65 of PD No. 1445 and DOF Circular No. 01-2017,
duly cited by COA as the basis for the observation, admits of
exceptions.

b.

The PITC’s Revised Charter, PD No. 1071, which is a special law,
cannot be amended by a general law (PD No. 1445) and a DOF
Circular (DOF Circular No. 01-2017). PD No. 1445 is a law of
general application and DOF Circular No. 01-2017 is an
administrative issuance also of general application.

c.

Sections 5 (f) and (p) of PD No. 1071 on the powers of the
Corporation enables PITC to keep interest earnings of funds under
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its administration. These provisions of PITC’s Charter allow PITC to
maintain clients’ accounts/funds, including incidental thereto such as
investing the funds to maximize fund yields for the benefit of the
client as well as for PITC to earn more for its own funds pending
utilization. Hence, as a widely adopted principle in law and
jurisprudence, a special law prevails over laws/rules of general
application. PITC did not err in maintaining the said funds and
recording the same in their books as interest income.

3.9

d.

PITC is in full compliance with its MOA with its client agencies with
respect to remittance of the latter’s share in interest income earned.

e.

It must be pointed out the PITC declares and remits 50 per cent
dividends to the National Treasury from the interest income earned
from its invested funds so its inaccurate to state that interest income
is not remitted to the National Treasury.

f.

PITC will accede to COA’s esteemed recommendation to seek DOF
reconsideration to avail/retain interest earned for being a dutiful and
efficient financial manager and prudently await DOF’s position for
proper guidance and action.

As rejoinders, the Audit Team:
a.

Maintains its position that PITC did not comply with Section 65 of
PD No. 1445 and Section 5.3.2 of DOF Circular No. 01-2017 dated
May 11, 2017.

b.

Would like to point out that Section 6(p) of PD No. 1071, “THE
REVISED CHARTER OF THE PHILIPPINE INTERNATIONAL
TRADE CORPORATION” pertains to the power of the PITC to
“invest and deal with the funds of the Corporation.” The observation
pertains to the interest earnings from fund transfers from various
SAs and are held in trust by the PITC; the said funds belong to the
SAs and not to the “Corporation”/PITC.

c.

Does not question PITC’s authority to handle the fund transfers from
its client-government agencies and act as Fund Manager. However,
these funds are only held in trust therefore, any benefit derived
therefrom (i.e. interest from money market placements and
investments) technically accrues to the fund owners.

GENDER AND DEVELOPMENT (GAD)
4.

The CY 2019 GAD Plan and Budget (GPB) and Accomplishment Report
(AR) of PITC were not endorsed and approved by the Philippine
Commission on Women (PCW), contrary to PCW-National Economic and
Development Authority-Department of Budget and Management (PCWNEDA-DBM) Joint Circular No. 2012-01. Likewise, of the allocated amount
of P7.929 million or only 3.49 per cent of the total Corporate Operating
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Budget (COB) for the implementation of the identified GAD-related
programs, activities and projects (PAPs), only P2.646 million or 33.37 per
cent thereof was actually utilized; hence, the objective to address various
gender issues of the Agency through GAD-related PAPs was not fully
achieved.
4.1

The PCW-NEDA-DBM Joint Circular No. 2012-01 prescribes the
guidelines and procedures for the formulation, development, submission,
implementation, monitoring and evaluation including accounting of results
of agency annual GPBs, and GAD Accomplishment Report (AR).

4.2

Every year, the PCW issues a Memorandum Circular for the preparation
and online submission of Fiscal Year (FY) GPB and ARs and conducts
Budget Forum relative thereto. PCW is mandated to review, approve and
endorse the GPB three months after the deadline of submission.

4.3

Likewise, Section 6.1 of the PCW-NEDA-DBM Joint Circular No. 2012-01
provides that:
At least five per cent (5%) of the total agency budget
appropriations authorized under the annual GAA shall
correspond to activities supporting GAD plans and programs.
The GAD budget shall be drawn from the agency’s
maintenance and other operating expenses (MOOE), capital
outlay (CO), and personal services (PS). It is understood that
the GAD budget does not constitute an additional budget
over an agency’s total budget appropriations.

4.4

Verification showed that PITC allocated P7.929 million for its CY 2019
GAD PAPs or 3.49 per cent of its P226.996 million approved COB, which
is not accordance with the minimum requirement of 5 per cent of the
approved COB as provided in the PCW-NEDA-DBM Joint Circular No.
2012-01.

4.5

Likewise, the CY 2019 GPB and the corresponding Accomplishment
Report (AR) of the PITC were not endorsed and approved by the PCW
Thus, there is no assurance that the programs, projects and activities
(PAPs) indicated therein addresses the gender issues of the Agency.

Of the allocated amount of P7.929 million, P2.646
million or 33.37 per cent thereof was actually
utilized
4.6

Verification showed that PITC utilized a total amount of P2.646 million
only or 33.37 per cent of the allocated amount of P7.929 million in the CY
2019 GPB. Further review disclosed that the minimal utilization was
caused by the non-implementation of other GAD planned activities. Nonimplementation of all planned GAD activities deprived the intended
beneficiaries of the benefits thus, the objective to address various gender
issues of Agency was not fully achieved.
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Other observation
4.7

Review of the CY 2019 GPB disclosed that it only included
organizational-focused PAPs. The GPB did not include Gender
perspectives which may be integrated in the regular PAPs of the PITC
where the utilization costs are high.

4.8

Likewise, PITC has not develop yet its GAD Database/Sex-disaggregated
data, as provided under Section 4.4 of PCW-NEDA-DBM Joint Circular
No. 2012-01. The GAD Database is an essential element in GAD
planning and budgeting as it enables agencies to effectively plan and
implement their sectoral programs on GAD.

4.9

We recommended and Management agreed to:
a.

Ensure that the annual GPB and GAD AR are duly endorsed by
the PCW as assurance that the PAPs indicated therein
addresses the gender issues of the Agency;

b.

Allocate at least five (5) per cent of the annual COB for GADrelated
PAPs
through
attribution
and
mainstreaming/integrating gender perspectives in the major
programs and projects of the PITC;

c.

Implement all the GAD PAPs in the PCW-endorsed GPB to
ensure that identified gender issues are timely and properly
addressed; and

d.

Comply with Section 4.4 of the PCW-NEDA-DBM Joint Circular
No. 2012-01 on the institutionalization of the GAD
Database/Sex-disaggregated Data to ensure a more effective
implementation of GAD PAPs

COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS
5.

The PITC has been consistently withholding and remitting taxes on salaries and
wages and other benefits due from its officers and employees as well as
procurement of goods and services to the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR).
The balance of the account Due to BIR as of December 31, 2019 was remitted in
CY 2020, as shown in Table 3.
Table 3 - Remittances of the Due to BIR as of December 31, 2019

Employees’ withholding tax
Expanded withholding tax
Withholding tax on VAT
Final Withholding Tax
Vat Payable

Amount
P 710,970
2,334,966
8,690,304
427,500
1,796,028

Date Remitted
January 09, 2020
January 09, 2020
January 09, 2020
January 09, 2020
January 23, 2020
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COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENT SERVICE INSURANCE SYSTEM (GSIS),
PHILIPPINE HEALTH INSURANCE CORPORATION (PHILHEALTH) AND HOME
DEVELOPMENT MUTUAL FUND (HDMF) LAWS
6.

The PITC consistently complies with the requirements on the withholding from its
employees’ salaries the corresponding contributions to the GSIS, PhilHealth and
HDMF and, regularly remits to these government agencies the withheld amounts
together with the PITC’s share. Contributions for December 2019 were remitted
in January 2020, as presented in Tables 4, 5 and 6.
Table 4 - Remittance to GSIS

GSIS life and retirement premium
GSIS optional insurance
Educational loan
Salary loan
Policy loan
ECC
UOLI

Amount
P 621,308
1,400
217
183,602
10,439
5,400
1,588

Date Remitted
January 08, 2020
January 08, 2020
January 08, 2020
January 08, 2020
January 08, 2020
January 08, 2020
January 08, 2020

Table 5 - Remittance to PhilHealth
Amount
P55,777

PhilHealth contributions

Date Remitted
January 15, 2020

Table 6 - Remittance to HDMF

Pag-IBIG contribution
Pag-IBIG housing loan
Pag-IBIG multi-purpose loan

Amount
P 98,878
150,419
26,311

Date Remitted
January 08, 2020
January 08, 2020
January 08, 2020

COMPLIANCE WITH PROPERTY INSURANCE LAW
7.

For CY 2019, the PITC’s properties such as buildings and motor vehicles were
insured with the GSIS in compliance with Republic Act (RA) No. 656, otherwise
known as the “Property Insurance Law,” as amended by PD No. 245 dated July
13, 1973. The insured properties are presented in Table 7.
Table 7- Insured Properties

Property
IT equipment and software
Leasehold improvements
Motor vehicles
Warehouse
Condominiums
Total

Amount Insured
P 1,165,725
1,055,589
1,646,024
1,000,000
56,086,800
P60,954,138

Premiums Paid
P 25,648
1,111
48,836
3,500
60,304
P139,399
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SUMMARY OF SUSPENSIONS, DISALLOWANCES AND CHARGES
8.

As of December 31, 2019, there were no unsettled audit suspensions,
disallowances and charges.
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PART III - STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION
OF PRIOR YEAR’S AUDIT
RECOMMENDATIONS

PART III - STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR YEAR’S
AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS
Of the eleven (11) audit recommendations embodied in the previous year’s Annual Audit
Report (AAR), five (5) were fully implemented and six (6) were partially implemented. Details
are as follows:
Reference

Observations

2018 AAR
Audit
Observation
(AO) No. 1,
p. 55

Unserviceable
properties with carrying
cost totalling P416,031
were still recorded in the
books
as
part
of
Property, Plant and
Equipment (PPE); thus,
overstating the PPE
account by the same
amount which is not in
accordance
with
Paragraph 67 of the
Philippine
Accounting
Standard (PAS) 16.

2018 AAR
AO No. 2,
p. 56

The Memoranda of
Agreement
(MOAs)
entered into by PITC, as
procurement agent, with
various
clientgovernment
agencies
for the procurement of
goods,
services
including infrastructure
projects
have
no
provision for a definite
time frame within which
the parties are to
perform their respective
responsibilities,
resulting in delays in the
implementation of the
procurements.
Likewise, funds were

Status of
Implementation

Recommendations
We
recommended
Management:

that

a. Direct the Committee on Fully Implemented.
Disposal
and
the
Property
Officer
to
facilitate the disposal of
the
unserviceable
properties; and.
b. Instruct the Accounting Fully Implemented.
Department
to
derecognize in the books
of accounts the cost and
related
accumulated
depreciation
of
unserviceable properties
upon disposal thereof
consistent
with
Paragraph 67 of PAS 16.
We
recommended
Management:

that

a. Amend the MOA by Fully Implemented.
stipulating
therein
a
definite time frame within
which the parties are to
act on their respective
responsibilities to fast
track the procurements of
goods
and
services
including
infrastructure
projects;
b. For idle funds totaling
P7.931 billion, require the
concerned
clientgovernment agencies to
immediately submit the

Partially
Implemented.
This was reiterated
under Part II –
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Reference

Observations

Status of
Implementation
TOR, AOR and other Observation
and
necessary documents so Recommendation
that the procurement of No. 1 of this Report.
goods and services could
be
implemented;
otherwise, remit/transfer
to the National Treasury
the funds pertaining to
client-NGAs
or
the
concerned
clientGOCCs, and inform the
concerned SAs of the
transfer thereof;
Recommendations

transferred to PITC
despite the absence of
complete
documentation,
specifically the Terms of
Reference (TORs) and
Agency
Outsourcing
Requests (AORs), thus
procurements could not
be immediately pursued
that resulted in the
accumulation of idle
funds totaling P7.931
billion as of December
31, 2018. Moreover, the c. Henceforth, see to it that
provision in the MOA on
all
the
necessary
the interest earnings of
documentations
are
the fund transfers is
provided by the clientcontrary to Section 65 of
government
agencies/
Presidential
Decree
SAs before requiring
(PD) No. 1445 and
them to transfer the
Department of Finance
funds to ensure the
(DOF) Circular No. 01timely procurement of
2017 dated May 11,
goods and services and
2017, thereby, depriving
prevent the funds from
the
client-government
becoming idle; and
agencies of additional
resources.
d. Remit to the Bureau of
the Treasury (BTr) all
interest earnings of the
fund
transfers
in
compliance with Section
65 of PD No. 1445 and
DOF Circular No. 012017 and inform the
client-government
agencies
of
the
remittance thereof.
2018 AAR
AO No. 3,
p. 61

Unexpended balances
of
fund
transfers
amounting to at least
P349.419
million for
various
procurement
projects
were
not
returned by PITC to the
Source Agencies (SAs)
despite
completion
thereof, contrary to the

We recommended and
Management agreed to
return the unexpended
balances
of
fund
transfers for completed
projects to the BTr for
those funds transferred
by client-NGAs or to
client-GOCCs, as the
case
maybe,
in

Partially
Implemented.
This was reiterated
under Part II –
Observation
and
Recommendation
No. 1 of this Report.

Partially
Implemented.
This was reiterated
under Part II –
Observation
and
Recommendation
No. 1 of this Report.

Partially
Implemented.
The observation was
reiterated
and
updated under Part
II – Observation and
Recommendation
No. 2 of this Report.
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Reference

Observations
provisions
of
COA
Circular No. 94-013
dated December 13,
1994 and Section 83 of
the Fiscal Year (FY)
2018
General
Appropriations
Act
(GAA) and the pertinent
provisions of the prior
years’
GAAs,
thus
depriving the utilization
of such funds by the
concerned
clientgovernment
agencies
and/or the National
Government for other
programs/
activities/
projects.

2018 AAR
AO No. 4,
p. 63

2018 AAR
AO No. 5,
p. 65

Interest
on
fund
transfers amounting to
P13.042 million due to
the
various
Source
Agencies (SAs) for prior
years
remained
unremitted
to
the
concerned SAs as of
December 31, 2018,
thereby depriving the
concerned
SAs
of
additional funds for their
other programs/projects.

Recommendations

Status of
Implementation

accordance with COA
Circular
No.
94-013
dated December 13,
1994 and Section 83 of
the 2018 GAA and the
pertinent provisions of
the prior years’ GAAs.

We
recommended
and Fully Implemented.
Management agreed to remit
immediately the interest due
to the concerned clientgovernment
agencies
pursuant to Article II of the
MOA.

We
recommended
that
The annual GAD Plan Management:
and Budget (GPB) for
FY 2018 of PITC was a. Prepare
and
submit Fully Implemented.
not
submitted to the
Annual GPB to PCW for
Philippine Commission
review and endorsement
on Women (PCW) for
in
consonance
with
review
and
PCW-NEDA-DBM Joint
endorsement. Likewise,
Circular No. 2012-01;
the Corporation did not
allocate at least five (5) b. Allocate at least five (5) Partially
per cent of its Corporate
per cent of approved Implemented.
Operating
Budget
COB in the formulation
(COB)
for
genderof the annual GPB and
related
programs,
mainstream
gender
66

Reference

Observations

Recommendations

activities and projects
perspectives
in
the
(PAPs), contrary to
PITC’s policies and PAPs
PCW-National
which shall be integrated
Economic
and
in the regular operations
Development Authorityof the Corporation; and
Department of Budget
and
Management c. Develop GAD database
(PCW-NEDA-DBM)
with
adequate
and
Joint Circular No. 2012systematically gathered
01. In addition, the PITC
sex disaggregated data
has no GAD database
which will provide the
to serve as basis for its
basis for effective gender
gender-responsive
analysis,
planning,
planning, programming
programming and policy
and policy formulation
formulation.
as required under Rule
VI, Section 37D of the
Magna
Carta
for
Women-Implementing
Rules and Regulations
(MCW-IRR).

Status of
Implementation

Partially
Implemented.
This was reiterated
under Part II –
Observation
and
Recommendation
No. 4 of this Report.
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Status of Fund Transfers Pending Procurement
As of December 31, 2019
(In Philippine Peso)
I. FUND TRANSFER FOR CY 2019

AGENCY

DATE

AMOUNT

AWAITING TOR
FROM CLIENT

ON-HOLD (awaiting
amended TOR/AOR
requested by SAs)

GOVERNMENT PROCUREMENT GROUP (GPG) :
BUREAU OF CUSTOMS (BOC)

2.28.19
5.23.19
6.21.19
2.28.19
5.23.19
6.21.19
2.28.19
5.23.19
6.21.19

17,035,714.28
916,046.82
48,238.90
6,384,607.15
343,313.98
18,078.87
47,926,404.65
2,593,429.20
119,386.15

17,035,714.28
916,046.82
48,238.90
6,384,607.15
343,313.98
18,078.87
47,926,404.65
2,593,429.20
119,386.15

3.19.19

1,043,646.00

1,037,486.40

01.22.19
01.22.19

20,729,600.00
23,980,000.00

20,729,900.00

01.04.19

9,371,936.40

01.15.19

265,710,692.67

02.11.19
09.03.19
09.03.19
10.07.19

77,661,227.33
57,238,914.44
6,544,842.48
9,679,967.52

77,661,227.33
57,238,914.44
6,544,842.48
9,679,967.52

12.26.19
12.09.19
12.26.19
12.26.19

12,912,160.80
21,915,058.29
29,909,869.89
2,788,915.84

12,912,160.80
21,915,058.29
29,909,869.89
2,788,915.84

11.22.19
11.22.19
11.22.19
11.22.19
11.22.19
11.22.19
11.22.19
11.22.19
11.22.19
11.22.19
11.22.19

100,000,000.00
100,000,000.00
100,000,000.00
5,000,000.00
5,000,000.00
5,000,000.00
15,000,000.00
1,011,398.00
5,000,000.00
3,321,022.34
5,000,000.00
959,204,472.00

100,000,000.00
100,000,000.00
100,000,000.00
5,000,000.00
5,000,000.00
5,000,000.00
15,000,000.00
1,011,398.00
5,000,000.00
3,321,022.34
5,000,000.00
623,133,556.74

01.17.19
02.20.19
10.31.19
11.20.19

23,570,000.00
4,684,834.30
1,736,636.90
17,447,890.33

23,570,000.00
4,684,834.30
1,736,636.90
17,447,890.33

09.24.19

92,894,400.00

92,894,400.00

09.10.19

441,945.44

441,945.44

30,000,000.00
11,763,630.00
9,300,000.00
8,400,000.00
3,120,000.00
203,359,336.97

30,000,000.00
11,763,630.00
9,300,000.00
8,400,000.00
3,120,000.00
155,919,975.44
483,308,088.43
1,153,881,006.70

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY AUTHORITY OF THE PHILIPPINES(CIAP)
DR. JOSE FABELLA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL (DJFMH)

23,980,000.00

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

9,371,936.40

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL WELFARE AND DEVELOPMENT - CENTRAL OFFICE

257,033,750.00

EARLY CHILDHOOD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL (ECCDC)

TECHNICAL EDUCATION AND SKILLS DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (TESDA)

UNIVERSITY OF THE PHILIPPINES SYSTEMS

Sub - total:

327,388,112.99

MILITARY PROCUREMENT GROUP (MPG):
GHQ - AFP

Philippine Army
PHILIPPINE AIR FORCE
OFFICEOF THE CIVIL DEFENSE (OCD)

01.31.19

Sub-total
TOTAL
GRAND TOTAL

47,439,361.53
670,572,918.27
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II. FUND TRANSFER FOR CY 2018 AND PRIOR YEARS

AGENCY

DATE

AMOUNT

ON-HOLD (awaiting
AWAITING TOR
amended TOR/AOR
FROM CLIENT
requested by SAs)

GOVERNMENT PROCUREMENT GROUP (GPG) :

BATAAN GENERAL HOSPITAL
01.16.17

7,151,656.00

1,494,064.00

BUREAU OF CUSTOMS (BOC)
05.05.17

96,500,000.00

84,500,000.00

05.26.17

100,000,000.00

100,000,000.00

06.08.17

253,000,000.00

253,000,000.00

07.03.17

763,000,000.00

422,000,000.00

05.25.18

305,000,000.00

305,000,000.00

05.31.18

2,212,000.00

2,212,000.00

05.25.18

24,100,000.00

24,100,000.00

09.30.17

995,912,894.84

75,000,000.01

12.31.17

49,060,250.00

8,056,000.00

02.16.16
03.29.16
03.29.16

63,882,562.71
96,443,305.33
19,247,136.89

12,532,376.00
4,689,000.00

03.29.16

17,559,920.82

11,187,497.97

03.29.16

2,719,436.56

9,490,126.32

02.16.16

384,284,812.50

384,284,812.50

03.29.16
03.29.16
11.22.17

85,002,372.53
4,455,970.20
34,695,866.49

82,574,407.71
4,455,970.20

05.31.18

24,390,744.63

24,390,744.63

05.31.18
05.31.18
05.31.18
05.31.18
05.31.18

14,365,383.79
26,050,000.00
12,762,820.25
36,991,000.00
4,128,808.00

14,365,383.79
26,050,000.00
12,762,820.25
36,991,000.00
4,128,808.00

02.18.16

344,142,396.28

02.18.16
03.15.16
03.15.16
03.15.17
03.15.17
03.15.17

51,590,572.80
626,052,316.26
852,982,651.71
2,465,460.20
15,005,100.00
11,160,000.00

03.15.17
05.08.17
05.08.17

1,220,000.00
202,971,809.00
9,536,250.00

202,971,809.00
9,536,250.00

05.08.17

7,465,200.00

7,465,200.00

05.08.17

6,150,000.00

6,150,000.00

05.08.17

1,336,500.00

08.09.18

268,645.00

268,645.00

3,532,758,106.98

637,486,792.19

BUREAU OF FIRE PROTECTION - NHQ
BUREAU OF FIRE PROTECTION - NCR
COMMISSION ON HIGHER EDUCATION
4,480,719.94
53,052,008.40
11,375,534.20

8,879,107.03

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT & NATURAL RESOURCES (DENR)

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH - CENTRAL OFFICE (DOH)
334,869,899.84
23,418,000.00

15,028,540.80
30,266,209.92
669,694,053.00

2,465,460.20
15,005,100.00
11,160,000.00
1,220,000.00

1,336,500.00

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY (DICT)
2017/2018
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DEPARTMENT OF TRADE & INDUSTRY REGION VII
DTI- Region VII

01.10.14
01.10.14
01.10.14

1,000,000.00
700,000.00
1,000,000.00

2,700,000.00

07.13.16

123,008,257.97

24,146,817.05

10.05.16

10,536,135.93

12,138,164.26

09.14.17

1,602,028.33

10.05.16
01.19.17
09.14.17

5,097,081.30
26,543,976.01
61,627,826.97

04.24.18

68,400,960.00

2,530,928.69

04.24.18

26,589,000.00

27,253,725.00

12.05.17

13,582,400.00

13,582,400.00

07.31.18

4,941,600.00

4,941,600.00

10.26.17

6,935,681.49

1,900,000.00

11.08.17

2,090,190.00

1,495,631.20

09.30.17

85,409,101.84

09.30.17

2,654,057.58

576,755.20

12.31.17

4,359,116.40

4,359,116.40

01.31.18

69,356,600.77

9,358,388.77

01.31.18

17,118,372.45

17,118,372.45

01.31.18

159,799,999.98

159,799,999.98

02.28.18

31,649,998.61

31,649,998.61

11.30.18

60,000,000.00

60,000,000.00

01.31.09
01.08.10

1,106,010.04
1,444,046.79

09.29.16

178,537,526.42

170,633,086.42

12.19.16

187,679,876.38

66,335,876.38

12.19.16

99,213,348.46

61,604,356.46

10.2016

417,645,883.45

108,611,772.28

12.2016

129,847,079.32

28,727,079.32

03.31.16

1,032,940,540.68

571,731,408.00

12.29.17

1,500,000.00

89,300,000.00

12.29.17

3,300,000.00

12.28.17
12.28.17
09.26.18
09.26.18
09.26.18
09.26.18

3,300,000.00
6,000,000.00
17,600,000.00
17,600,000.00
32,000,000.00
8,000,000.00

12.27.17

241,296,000.00

380,400,000.00

12.27.17

260,150,000.00

121,046,000.00

12.27.17
09.19.18
09.19.18

189,215,461.66
89,316,000.00
400,000,000.00

11.28.17
10.16.18
12.06.18

413,378,662.68
2,052,000.00
7,951,000.00

DR. JOSE FABELLA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
EARLY CHILDHOOD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL (ECCDC)

5,097,081.30
5,677,165.10
61,627,826.97

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT BUREAU (EMB)

LAND MANAGEMENT BUREAU (LMB)

LAS PINAS GEN HOSPITAL & SATELLITE TRAUMA CENTER (LPGH & STC)
OSPITAL NG PALAWAN
PHILIPPINE COAST GUARD (PCG)
12,297,244.80

PHILIPPINE DRUG ENFORCEMENT AGENCY (PDEA)
1,106,010.04
1,444,046.79

PHILIPPINE GENERAL HOSPITAL MANILA (UPM-PGH)

101,120,000.00

PHILIPPINE NATIONAL POLICE (PNP)
04.30.16
PHILIPPINE STATE COLLEGE OF AERONOTICS

RESEARCH INSTITUTE OF TROPICAL MEDICINE (RITM)

169,040,000.00
89,316,000.00
400,000,000.00

UNIVERSITY OF THE PHILIPPINES SYSTEMS
110,900,000.00
2,052,000.00
7,951,000.00
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UNIVERSITY OF THE PHILIPPINES LOS BAÑOS
31,284,483.10
160,000,000.00
1,359,418.56
58,037,315.28
99,129,842.61
28,590,119.00
15,000,000.00
82,897,704.18
3,467,649.64
5,000,000.00
16,606,814.47

30,593,726.87
160,000,000.00

96,669,897.44
14,211,141,015.56

23,761,727.33
4,541,030,911.77

2,064,251.60
1,710,060.00

52,000,824.09
93,752,744.00
23,590,880.00
1,416,345.83
78,156,140.08
3,422,359.42
5,000,000.00
6,092,180.96

UNIVERSITY OF THE PHILIPPINESMINDANAO
04.19.18
Sub-total

72,908,170.11
2,902,403,190.89

MILITARY PROCUREMENT GROUP (MPG):

GHQ - AFP
02.10.17
02.22.18

4,991,624.00

4,991,624.00

12,000,000.00

2,399,737.00

05.05.16
01.10.18
08.31.18
10.12.18
10.12.18

3,200,000.00
40,620,000.00
1,465,755.00
5,956,472.30
240,769,645.43

3,200,000.00
40,620,000.00
1,465,755.00
5,956,472.30
100,890,000.00

12.31.17
12.31.17

2,189,828.10
34,602,832.16

01.26.18
03.21.18
04.18.18
04.18.18
04.18.18
04.18.18
06.30.18
07.31.18

2,773,399.53
20,000,000.00
2,663,185.00
4,500,000.00
29,833,635.74
1,200,000.00
97,187,859.13
74,585,472.00

2,773,399.53
20,000,000.00
2,663,185.00
4,500,000.00
29,833,635.74
1,200,000.00
97,187,859.13
74,585,472.00

03.21.18
03.21.18

900,000.00
1,604,000.00

900,000.00
1,604,000.00

12.31.18

12,800,000.00
49,750,000.00
20,800,000.00
2,013,938.95
8,450,000.00
4,000,000.00
49,500,000.00
678,857,647.34

12,800,000.00
49,750,000.00
20,800,000.00
2,013,938.95
8,450,000.00
4,000,000.00
49,500,000.00
576,687,910.81
3,479,091,101.70
8,022,311,841.57
9,176,192,848.27

Philippine Army

Philippine Military Academy
2,189,828.10
34,602,832.16

Philippine Navy

PHILIPPINES VETERANS AFFAIRS OFFICE

OFFICEOF THE CIVIL DEFENSE (OCD)

Sub-total
TOTAL
GRAND TOTAL - CY2018 and Prior Years
GRAND TOTAL (CY 2019,CY 2018 and Prior Years

2,189,828.10
4,543,220,739.87
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